
 
 

v1 2015 

AGENDA  
 

Meeting Regeneration Committee 

Date Wednesday 4 July 2018 

Time 2.30 pm 

Place Chamber, City Hall, The Queen's 
Walk, London, SE1 2AA 

Copies of the reports and any attachments may be found at: 
www.london.gov.uk/mayor-assembly/london-assembly/regeneration-committee 
 
 
Most meetings of the London Assembly and its Committees are webcast live at 
www.london.gov.uk/mayor-assembly/london-assembly/webcasts where you can also view past 
meetings. 
 
Members of the Committee 
Shaun Bailey AM (Chairman) 
Navin Shah AM (Deputy Chair) 
Tony Devenish AM 

Nicky Gavron AM 
Dr Onkar Sahota AM 

 

A meeting of the Committee has been called by the Chairman of the Committee to deal with the 

business listed below.  

Ed Williams, Executive Director of Secretariat 
Tuesday 26 June 2018 

 
Further Information 
If you have questions, would like further information about the meeting or require special facilities 
please contact: Teresa Young, Senior Committee Officer; Telephone: 020 7983 6559;  
email: teresa.young@london.gov.uk 
 
For media enquiries please contact, Howard Wheeler, External Communications Officer;  
Telephone: 020 7983 4769.  If you have any questions about individual items please contact the 
author whose details are at the end of the report.  
 
This meeting will be open to the public, except for where exempt information is being discussed as 
noted on the agenda.  A guide for the press and public on attending and reporting meetings of local 
government bodies, including the use of film, photography, social media and other means is available 
at www.london.gov.uk/sites/default/files/Openness-in-Meetings.pdf.  
 
There is access for disabled people, and induction loops are available.  There is limited underground 
parking for orange and blue badge holders, which will be allocated on a first-come first-served basis.  
Please contact Facilities Management on 020 7983 4750 in advance if you require a parking space or 
further information. 

http://www.london.gov.uk/moderngov/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=303
http://www.london.gov.uk/mayor-assembly/london-assembly/webcasts
http://www.london.gov.uk/sites/default/files/Openness-in-Meetings.pdf


 

 
Certificate Number: FS 80233 

If you, or someone you know, needs a copy of the agenda, minutes or reports 
in large print or Braille, audio, or in another language, then please call us on 
020 7983 4100 or email assembly.translations@london.gov.uk.   
 

 
 

mailto:assembly.translations@london.gov.uk


 

3 
 

Agenda 
Regeneration Committee 
Wednesday 4 July 2018 
 
 

1 Apologies for Absence and Chairman's Announcements  
 
 To receive any apologies and any announcements from the Chairman. 

 
 

2 Declarations of Interests (Pages 1 - 4) 

 
 Report of the Executive Director of Secretariat. 

Contact:  Teresa Young, teresa.young@london.gov.uk 020 7983 6559 

 

The Committee is recommended to: 

 

(a)  Note the list of offices held by Assembly Members, as set out in the table at 

Agenda Item 2, as disclosable pecuniary interests; 

 

(b)  Note the declaration by any Member(s) of any disclosable pecuniary interests 

in specific items listed on the agenda and the necessary action taken by the 

Member(s) regarding withdrawal following such declaration(s); and 

 

(c)    Note the declaration by any Member(s) of any other interests deemed to be 

relevant (including any interests arising from gifts and hospitality received 

which are not at the time of the meeting reflected on the Authority’s register 

of gifts and hospitality, and noting also the advice from the GLA’s 

Monitoring Officer set out at Agenda Item 2) and to note any necessary 

action taken by the Member(s) following such declaration(s). 
 
 

3 Minutes (Pages 5 - 32) 

 
 The Committee is recommended to confirm the minutes of the meeting of the 

Committee held on 16 May 2018 to be signed by the Chair as a correct record. 
 

 The appendix to the minutes set out on pages 11 to 33 is attached for Members and officers 

only but is available from the following area of the GLA’s website:  

www.london.gov.uk/mayor-assembly/london-assembly/regeneration-committee 
 
 

  
 
 

mailto:Teresa.young@london.gov.uk
www.london.gov.uk/mayor-assembly/london-assembly/regeneration-committee


 

4 
 

4 Summary List of Actions (Pages 33 - 36) 

 
 Report of the Executive Director of Secretariat 

Contact: Teresa Young, teresa.young@london.gov.uk 020 7983 6559 

 

The Committee is recommended to note the completed and ongoing actions arising 

from previous meetings of the Committee. 
 
 

5 Response to Regeneration Committee Report, Centres for Excellence?  
Good Growth Through Town Centre Regeneration (Pages 37 - 48) 

 
 Report of the Executive Director of Secretariat 

Contact: Teresa Young, teresa.young@london.gov.uk 020 7983 6559 

 

The Committee is recommended to note the response from Jules Pipe CBE, Deputy 

Mayor for Planning, Regeneration and Skills, to the Committee’s report, Centres for 

Excellence?  Good Growth Through Town Centre Regeneration, attached at 

Appendix 1 to the report. 
 
 

6 Regeneration in London's Royal Docks (Pages 49 - 52) 

 
 Report of the Executive Director of Secretariat 

Contact: Reece Harris, reece.harris@london.gov.uk; 020 7983 5082 

 

The Committee is recommended to: 

 

(a) Agree the areas for consideration set out in paragraph 4.1 of the report, and 

note the report as background to the discussion with invited guests 

regarding the regeneration of the Royal Docks Enterprise Zone in the London 

Borough of Newham; and 

 

(b) Delegate authority to the Chairman, in consultation with the Deputy Chair, to 

agree any output from the Committee’s meeting on the regeneration of the 

Royal Docks Enterprise Zone in the London Borough of Newham and any 

additional activity to support the Committee’s scrutiny investigation of the 

regeneration of the Royal Docks. 
 
 

  
 
 

mailto:Teresa.young@london.gov.uk
mailto:Teresa.young@london.gov.uk
mailto:reece.harris@london.gov.uk


 

5 
 

7 Regeneration Committee Work Programme (Pages 53 - 64) 

 
 Report of the Executive Director of Secretariat 

Contact: Riina Heinonen, riina.heinonen@london.gov.uk; 020 7983 4510 

 

The Committee is recommended to: 

 

(a) Note the progress on its work programme as set out in the report. 

 

(b) Note the action taken by the Chairman, in consultation with the Deputy 

Chair, to agree a site visit to the Southwark Construction Skills Centre on 

24 May 2018 and notes the summary of that site visit set out in 

paragraph 4.4 of the report. 

 

(c) Note the summary of it site visit to the Royal Docks set out in paragraphs 4.5 

to 4.7 of the report. 

 

(d) Delegate authority to the Chairman, in consultation with the Deputy Chair, to 

agree the topic and use of the Committee’s meeting slot on 

5 September 2018 and to make any arrangements for the activity the 

Committee undertakes. 

 

(e) Note the summary of its site visit to the London Legacy Development 

Corporation regeneration area held on 8 March 2018, attached at Appendix 1 

to the report. 

 

(f) Note the Impact Review report for the Committee’s report, Relighting the 

torch: securing the Olympic legacy, attached at Appendix 2 to the report. 
 
 

8 Date of Next Meeting  
 
 Subject to decisions about the work programme, the next meeting of the Regeneration 

Committee is scheduled for Wednesday, 5 September 2018 at 2pm in the Chamber, City Hall. 
 
 

9 Any Other Business the Chairman Considers Urgent  
 
 
 

mailto:riina.heinonen@london.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



 

                                                                      

City Hall, The Queen’s Walk, London SE1 2AA 
Enquiries: 020 7983 4100 minicom: 020 7983 4458 www.london.gov.uk  v2/2018 

 

Subject: Declarations of Interests 
 

Report to: Regeneration Committee  
 

Report of:  Executive Director of Secretariat 

 
Date: 4 July 2018 

 
This report will be considered in public 
 
 
 
1. Summary  

 
1.1 This report sets out details of offices held by Assembly Members for noting as disclosable pecuniary 

interests and requires additional relevant declarations relating to disclosable pecuniary interests, and 

gifts and hospitality to be made. 

 
 
2. Recommendations  
 

2.1 That the list of offices held by Assembly Members, as set out in the table below, be noted 

as disclosable pecuniary interests1; 

2.2 That the declaration by any Member(s) of any disclosable pecuniary interests in specific 

items listed on the agenda and the necessary action taken by the Member(s) regarding 

withdrawal following such declaration(s) be noted; and 

2.3 That the declaration by any Member(s) of any other interests deemed to be relevant 

(including any interests arising from gifts and hospitality received which are not at the 

time of the meeting reflected on the Authority’s register of gifts and hospitality, and 

noting also the advice from the GLA’s Monitoring Officer set out at below) and any 

necessary action taken by the Member(s) following such declaration(s) be noted. 

 
3. Issues for Consideration  
 
3.1 Relevant offices held by Assembly Members are listed in the table overleaf: 

  

                                                 
1 The Monitoring Officer advises that: Paragraph 10 of the Code of Conduct will only preclude a Member from 
participating in any matter to be considered or being considered at, for example, a meeting of the Assembly, 
where the Member has a direct Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in that particular matter. The effect of this is 
that the ‘matter to be considered, or being considered’ must be about the Member’s interest. So, by way of 
example, if an Assembly Member is also a councillor of London Borough X, that Assembly Member will be 
precluded from participating in an Assembly meeting where the Assembly is to consider a matter about the 
Member’s role / employment as a councillor of London Borough X; the Member will not be precluded from 
participating in a meeting where the Assembly is to consider a matter about an activity or decision of London 
Borough X. 

 

Page 1

Agenda Item 2



        

Member Interest 

Tony Arbour AM  

Jennette Arnold OBE AM Committee of the Regions  

Gareth Bacon AM Member, LB Bexley 

Shaun Bailey AM  

Sian Berry AM Member, LB Camden 

Andrew Boff AM Congress of Local and Regional Authorities (Council of 
Europe) 

Leonie Cooper AM Member, LB Wandsworth 

Tom Copley AM Member, LB Lewisham 

Unmesh Desai AM  

Tony Devenish AM Member, City of Westminster 

Andrew Dismore AM  

Len Duvall AM  

Florence Eshalomi AM  

Nicky Gavron AM  

Susan Hall AM Member, LB Harrow 

David Kurten AM  

Joanne McCartney AM Deputy Mayor 

Steve O’Connell AM Member, LB Croydon  

Caroline Pidgeon MBE AM  

Keith Prince AM Alternate Member, European Committee of the Regions 

Caroline Russell AM Member, LB Islington 

Dr Onkar Sahota AM  

Navin Shah AM  

Fiona Twycross AM Deputy Mayor for Fire and Resilience; Chair of the London 
Local Resilience Forum 

Peter Whittle AM  
 

[Note: LB - London Borough] 
 

3.2 Paragraph 10 of the GLA’s Code of Conduct, which reflects the relevant provisions of the Localism 

Act 2011, provides that:  
 

- where an Assembly Member has a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in any matter to be considered 
or being considered or at  

 

(i) a meeting of the Assembly and any of its committees or sub-committees; or  
 

(ii) any formal meeting held by the Mayor in connection with the exercise of the Authority’s 
functions  

 

- they must disclose that interest to the meeting (or, if it is a sensitive interest, disclose the fact 
that they have a sensitive interest to the meeting); and  

 

- must not (i) participate, or participate any further, in any discussion of the matter at the 
meeting; or (ii) participate in any vote, or further vote, taken on the matter at the meeting 

 

UNLESS 
 

- they have obtained a dispensation from the GLA’s Monitoring Officer (in accordance with 
section 2 of the Procedure for registration and declarations of interests, gifts and hospitality – 
Appendix 5 to the Code).    

 

3.3 Failure to comply with the above requirements, without reasonable excuse, is a criminal offence; as is 

knowingly or recklessly providing information about your interests that is false or misleading. 

Page 2



        

3.4 In addition, the Monitoring Officer has advised Assembly Members to continue to apply the test that 

was previously applied to help determine whether a pecuniary / prejudicial interest was arising - 

namely, that Members rely on a reasonable estimation of whether a member of the public, with 

knowledge of the relevant facts, could, with justification, regard the matter as so significant that it 

would be likely to prejudice the Member’s judgement of the public interest.  

3.5 Members should then exercise their judgement as to whether or not, in view of their interests and 

the interests of others close to them, they should participate in any given discussions and/or 

decisions business of within and by the GLA. It remains the responsibility of individual Members to 

make further declarations about their actual or apparent interests at formal meetings noting also 

that a Member’s failure to disclose relevant interest(s) has become a potential criminal offence. 

3.6 Members are also required, where considering a matter which relates to or is likely to affect a person 

from whom they have received a gift or hospitality with an estimated value of at least £25 within the 

previous three years or from the date of election to the London Assembly, whichever is the later, to 

disclose the existence and nature of that interest at any meeting of the Authority which they attend 

at which that business is considered.  

3.7 The obligation to declare any gift or hospitality at a meeting is discharged, subject to the proviso set 

out below, by registering gifts and hospitality received on the Authority’s on-line database. The on-

line database may be viewed here:  

 https://www.london.gov.uk/mayor-assembly/gifts-and-hospitality.  

3.8 If any gift or hospitality received by a Member is not set out on the on-line database at the time of 

the meeting, and under consideration is a matter which relates to or is likely to affect a person from 

whom a Member has received a gift or hospitality with an estimated value of at least £25, Members 

are asked to disclose these at the meeting, either at the declarations of interest agenda item or when 

the interest becomes apparent.  

3.9 It is for Members to decide, in light of the particular circumstances, whether their receipt of a gift or 

hospitality, could, on a reasonable estimation of a member of the public with knowledge of the 

relevant facts, with justification, be regarded as so significant that it would be likely to prejudice the 

Member’s judgement of the public interest. Where receipt of a gift or hospitality could be so 

regarded, the Member must exercise their judgement as to whether or not, they should participate in 

any given discussions and/or decisions business of within and by the GLA. 

 

4. Legal Implications 
 

4.1 The legal implications are as set out in the body of this report. 

 
5. Financial Implications 
 

5.1 There are no financial implications arising directly from this report. 

 

Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985  
List of Background Papers: None 

Contact Officer: Teresa Young, Senior Committee Officer 

Telephone: 020 7983 6559 

E-mail: teresa.young@london.gov.uk 

 

Page 3

https://www.london.gov.uk/about-us/governance-and-spending/good-governance/gifts-and-hospitality
mailto:teresa.young@london.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank

Page 4



                                                                      

 
 
City Hall, The Queen’s Walk, London SE1 2AA 
Enquiries: 020 7983 4100 minicom: 020 7983 4458 www.london.gov.uk 

 

MINUTES 
 

Meeting: Regeneration Committee 
Date: Wednesday 16 May 2018 
Time: 2.00 pm 
Place: Chamber, City Hall, The Queen's 

Walk, London, SE1 2AA 
 
Copies of the minutes may be found at:  

http://www.london.gov.uk/mayor-assembly/london-assembly/regeneration 

 

 
Present: 
 
Shaun Bailey AM (Chairman) 
Navin Shah AM (Deputy Chair) 
Tony Devenish AM 
Nicky Gavron AM 
Dr Onkar Sahota AM 
 
 

1   Apologies for Absence and Chair's Announcements (Item 1) 

 

1.1 There were no apologies for absence. 

 

1.2 The Chairman, on behalf of the Committee, thanked the former Chair, Navin Shah AM, for his 

hard work during the 2017/18 Assembly year. 

 
 
2   Declarations of Interests (Item 2) 

 

2.1 Resolved: 

 

That the list of offices held by Assembly Members, as set out in the table at 

Agenda Item 2, be noted as disclosable pecuniary interests. 

 
 
 
 

Page 5

Agenda Item 3

http://www.london.gov.uk/mayor-assembly/london-assembly/regeneration


Greater London Authority 
Regeneration Committee 
Wednesday 16 May 2018 

 

 
 

3   Membership of the Committee (Item 3) 

 

3.1 The Committee received the updated membership and chairing arrangements, agreed at the 

Annual Meeting of the London Assembly, as set out on the supplementary agenda. 

 

3.2 Resolved: 
 

That the membership and chairing arrangements for the Regeneration Committee, 

as agreed at the Annual Meeting of the London Assembly on 10 May 2018, be 

noted as follows: 

 

Shaun Bailey AM (Chairman) 

Navin Shah AM (Deputy Chair) 

Tony Devenish AM 

Nicky Gavron AM 

Dr Onkar Sahota AM 

 
 
4   Terms of Reference (Item 4) 

 

4.1 That the following terms of reference for the Committee, as agreed at the Annual 

Meeting of the London Assembly on 10 May 2018, be noted: 

 

1. To examine and report from time to time on - 

 matters of importance to Greater London; and 

 the strategies, policies and actions of the Mayor and Functional Bodies  

 as they impact on the regeneration of Greater London. 

 

2. To provide lead oversight for the London Assembly of the policies, decisions 

and actions of any Mayoral Development Corporation.  

 
3. To scrutinise functions relating to culture-led regeneration. 

 

4. To respond on behalf of the Assembly to consultations and similar processes 

when within its terms of reference. 

 

5. To take into account in its deliberations the cross cutting themes of: the 

health of persons in Greater London; the achievement of sustainable 

development in the United Kingdom; climate change; and the promotion of 

opportunity. 

 
 
 

Page 6



Greater London Authority 
Regeneration Committee 
Wednesday 16 May 2018 

 

 
 

5   Standing Delegation (Item 5) 

 
5.1 Resolved: 
 

That the following standing delegation of authority to the Chairman be noted:  

 

The London Assembly, at its Annual Meeting on 1 May 2013, agreed to delegate to 

Chairs of all ordinary committees and sub-committees a general authority to 

respond on the relevant committee or sub-committee’s behalf, following 

consultation with the lead Members of the party Groups on the committee or 

subcommittee, where it is consulted on issues by organisations and there is 

insufficient time to consider the consultation at a committee meeting. 

 
 
6   Minutes (Item 6) 

 

6.1 Resolved: 

 

That the minutes of the Regeneration Committee meeting held on 6 February 2018 

be signed by the Chairman as a correct record. 

 
 
7   Summary List of Actions (Item 7) 

 

7.1 The Committee received the report of the Executive Director of Secretariat. 

 

7.2 Resolved: 

 

That the completed and ongoing actions arising from previous meetings of the 

Committee be noted. 

 
 
8   Action Taken Under Delegated Authority (Item 8) 

 
8.1 The Committee received the report of the Executive Director of Secretariat. 
 
8.2 Resolved: 
 

(a) That the action taken by the former Chair of the Committee under delegated 

authority, in consultation with the former Deputy Chairman be noted, namely 

to agree: 

 

(i) The Committee’s report, Centres for Excellence?  Good growth through 

town centre regeneration;  

 

Page 7



Greater London Authority 
Regeneration Committee 
Wednesday 16 May 2018 

 

 
 

(ii) Arrangements for the Committee’s site visit to the London Legacy 

Development Corporation regeneration area on 8 March 2018;  

 

(iii) The Regeneration Committee’s submission to the Planning Committee in 

respect of the London Plan consultation; and 

 

(iv) That the topic for discussion at this meeting will be regeneration 

creating job opportunities. 

 

(b) That the Committee’s report, Centres for Excellence?  Good growth through 

town centre regeneration, attached at Appendix 1 to the report, be noted. 

 

(c) That the summary of the Committee’s site visit to the London Legacy 

Development Corporation regeneration area on 8 March 2018 as set out in 

paragraphs 4.4 and 4.5 of the report, be noted. 

 
 
9   Regeneration Creating Employment Opportunities (Item 9) 

 
9.1 The Committee received the report of the Executive Director of Secretariat as  

background to a discussion with the invited guests on regeneration creating employment 

opportunities.  

 

9.2 The Chairman welcomed the following invited guests to the meeting: 

 Julie Sexton, Senior Programme Manager, Regeneration, Greater London Authority 

(GLA);  

 Helen Stonelake, Project Manager, Regeneration, GLA; 

 Michael Heanue, Principal Policy Officer (Skills), GLA; 

 Tony Wilson, Director of Policy and Research, Learning and Work Institute; and 

 Danny Edwards, Strategy and Partnerships Manager, Southwark Council. 
 

9.3 A transcript of the discussion is attached at Appendix 1. 

 

9.4 At the end of the discussion, the Chairman thanked the guests for their attendance and 

helpful contributions to the meeting. 

 

9.5 Resolved: 

 

(a) That the report and discussion with invited guests regarding the regeneration 

initiatives creating employment opportunities across London, be noted.  

 

(b) That authority be delegated to the Chairman, in consultation with the Deputy 

Page 8



Greater London Authority 
Regeneration Committee 
Wednesday 16 May 2018 

 

 
 

Chair, to agree any output from the Committee’s meeting on the regeneration 

and employment opportunities in London and the arrangements for a site visit 

to support the Committee’s work on this subject. 

 
 
10   Regeneration Committee Work Programme (Item 10) 

 

10.1 The Committee received the report of the Executive Director of Secretariat. 
 

10.2 Resolved: 

 

(a) That the remainder of its meeting dates in the 2018/19 Assembly year, which 

were agreed at the Annual Meeting of the Assembly on 10 May 2018, as set 

out in paragraph 3.1 of the report, be noted. 

 

(b) That the Committee’s work programme, as set out in the report, be agreed 

and that it be agreed to use the Committee’s meeting slot on 20 June 2018 for 

a site visit to the Royal Docks. 

 

(c) That authority be delegated to the Chairman, in consultation with the Deputy 

Chair, to agree the scope and terms of reference for the Committee’s scrutiny 

review of the Royal Docks and the arrangements for a site visit to the Royal 

Docks. 

 
 
11   Date of Next Meeting (Item 11) 

 

11.1 The date of the next meeting was scheduled for 4 July 018 at 2.30pm in the Chamber, City 

Hall. 

 
 
12   Any Other Business the Chairman Considers Urgent (Item 12) 

 
12.1 There was no other business the Chairman considered urgent. 

 
 
13   Close of Meeting  

 
13.1 The meeting ended at 3.40pm. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 9



Greater London Authority 
Regeneration Committee 
Wednesday 16 May 2018 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 

   

Chairman  Date 
 
Contact Officer: Teresa Young, Senior Committee Officer; Telephone: 020 7983 6559;  

email: teresa.young@london.gov.uk 
 

Page 10



 

Appendix 1 
 

Regeneration Committee – Wednesday,16 May 2018 
 

Transcript of Item 9 - Regeneration Creating Employment Opportunities 

 

 

Shaun Bailey AM (Chairman):  Now we will move into the main area of discussion today, creating 

employment from regeneration opportunities.  Can I welcome our guests to the meeting and invite them to 

introduce themselves, please?  Let us start with Michael. 

 

Michael Heanue (Principal Policy Officer, Skills, Greater London Authority (GLA):  My name is 

Michael Heanue.  I am a Principal Policy Officer at the GLA in the Skills team, now based over at Union Street, 

and I am responsible for developing the Mayor’s Construction Academy scheme and supporting capital 

investments in further education. 

 

Tony Wilson (Director of Policy and Research, Learning and Work Institute):  My name is Tony Wilson.  

I am the Director of Policy and Research at the Learning and Work Institute and we are an independent centre 

that provides research, evaluation, analysis and other support to a range of organisations involved in learning 

and skills.  That has included the GLA and a number of London councils. 

 

Danny Edwards (Strategy and Partnerships Manager, Southwark Council):  My name is Danny 

Edwards.  I am a Strategy and Partnerships Manager at Southwark Council, just across the road.  I am 

responsible for delivery of strong local economy priorities for the local authority.  I manage the Council’s Local 

Economy Team. 

 

Julie Sexton (Senior Programme Manager, Regeneration, GLA):  I am Julie Sexton.  I am the Senior 

Manager here at the GLA of the Delivery Team within the Regeneration Unit.  Our team is responsible for 

delivering the GLA’s co-financing organisation responsibilities. 

 

Helen Stonelake (Project Manager, Regeneration, GLA):  I am Helen Stonelake and I work with Julie 

specifically on project management of the European Social Fund (ESF) element of the Delivery team’s work. 

 

Shaun Bailey AM (Chairman):  Thank you for that.  As is customary, as the Chair, I will do the kick-off 

question.  Please can you give a brief description of the activities of your team, their aims and what you 

provide to this space? 

 

Julie Sexton (Senior Programme Manager, Regeneration, GLA):  Within the Delivery Team we are 

responsible for managing a whole range of different types of programmes.  As Helen mentioned, the key one 

that you will be interested in today is the GLA’s ESF programme. 

 

It is probably worth me just mentioning that the GLA has two functions in terms of the ESF.  It has the 

European Programme Management Unit, which is a different team, and they are responsible for managing the 

ESF for London as a whole on behalf of the Department for Work and Pensions (DWP).  Our team manages the 

GLA’s co-financing programme, which is basically delivery of projects by organisations in London to support 

Londoners.  We are one of a number of co-financing organisations in London, the others being DWP, the 

National Offender Management Service, the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA), the Big Lottery 

Fund and a number of subregional partnerships.  We are obviously the GLA co-financing organisation (CFO). 

 

Page 11



 

The two teams are required to be separate because the GLA cannot be seen to have a preferential position in 

terms of attracting or getting an allocation from the ESF.  We cannot be allowed to be given an easier ride, 

perhaps is the way to say it, in terms of managing the funds. 

 

Our current ESF programme is small compared to the national CFOs.  It is a programme of about £25 million.  

That is 50% ESF, 50% other sources and match funding, some of it GLA but also some other sources.  We work 

very closely with colleagues in Policy teams such as the Skills team and the Education and Youth team to help 

them develop, procure and manage the projects that they will deliver against the Mayor’s policies in those 

areas.  That is probably the main thing to say in terms of our team’s role. 

 

Michael Heanue (Principal Policy Officer, Skills, GLA):  I work in the Skills and Employment Team and 

currently our work involves producing the Skills Strategy for London, which is largely where much of what you 

are asking about today will sit in terms of the future direction of travel and the policies that we are developing.  

As I mentioned, I am also involved in developing the Mayor’s Construction Academy scheme, which was 

described in the Manifesto and is about to be launched in June to improve the number of Londoners getting 

jobs in the construction sector.  That is the main area of my work right now. 

 

The Strategy itself alludes to both the devolution of the adult education budget, which we will be responsible 

for from next year, and the Construction Academy scheme, which is to be launched next month and will see 

investments of up to £8 million in capital in construction facilities across London’s providers of construction 

skills.  There will also be revenue funds made available to create a series of hubs across London, to exist where 

there are opportunities to bring together construction training facilities with construction firms reporting 

vacancies they struggle to fill. 

 

Tony Wilson (Director of Policy and Research, Learning and Work Institute):  At the Learning and 

Work Institute we are a team of about 40 to 45 people.  We deliver research, evaluation, analysis, consultancy 

and implementation support to a range of organisations that are involved in learning, skills and employment.  

Of most relevance to this, we do a lot of work funded by the Department for Education (DfE) looking at how 

we can implement and improve the delivery of adult learning and skills with a particular focus on 

apprenticeships, career learning, basic skills and capabilities, and, more recently, on the devolution of the adult 

education budget to the seven - now nine - mayoral combined authorities. 

 

We also evaluate a lot of programmes and do a lot of independent analysis of what is happening in the 

employment and skills market.  In London we have just concluded evaluating some GLA programmes, ESF 

programmes, and it has included evaluating programmes for a number of councils, including one in the recent 

past that Southwark Council were delivering with partners.  We are evaluating Working Capital, a devolved 

employment and health programme from DWP that is soon to be replaced by the devolved Work and Health 

programme.  That sort of thing. 

 

Danny Edwards (Strategy and Partnerships Manager, Southwark Council):  Southwark’s Local 

Economy team, as I said, has responsibility for delivery of Council planning priorities around promoting a strong 

local economy.  For 2014 to 2018 that included quite challenging commitments around supporting 

5,000 residents into work and creating 2,000 apprenticeships, both of which I am happy to say we have 

delivered. 

 

We are also responsible for the priority around making sure local residents benefit from regeneration activity 

that is going on in the Borough.  Related to that we commissioned the Southwark Construction Skills Centre, 

which looks to include the supply of Southwark residents into construction jobs that exist as a result of 

regeneration that is taking place in the Borough. 

 

Page 12



 

My team leads on the development and delivery of the Council’s Economic Wellbeing Strategy and more 

recently the Southwark Skills Strategy, which was adopted by Cabinet in December.  We are now working with 

a range of partners on the development of our delivery plan for that strategy. 

 

Shaun Bailey AM (Chairman):  Thank you for that.  I want to focus in slightly more on your activities.  This 

is to all guests at this point.  What function or role does your team play in improving access to the labour 

market?  That is inclusion as well, because there are some individuals who are very far away from the labour 

market and there are some who just need a little nudge to get there.  What role does your team or organisation 

play in that? 

 

Tony Wilson (Director of Policy and Research, Learning and Work Institute):  I am happy to go first.  

As I say, we are a research and policy development organisation so we very much support organisations that 

are on the front line delivering services.  Right now, we are working with DfE on their Five Cities initiative, 

which is around improving access to apprenticeships in five cities for black and minority ethnic (BAME) people 

who are particularly underrepresented in apprenticeships.  It has included working with DfE on learning 

disability and difficulty pathfinders to improve access to apprenticeships.  We have been commissioned by and 

worked with a number of councils to improve access to the labour market and access to employment and 

learning opportunities for disabled people in particular, which is a real area of focus at the moment, but 

similarly for a range of disadvantaged groups.  We also produce quite a lot of analysis and insight that is 

intended to support commissioners of services and also those delivering them. 

 

Julie Sexton (Senior Programme Manager, Regeneration, GLA):  For us in terms of the ESF - I will ask 

Helen [Stonelake] to chip in - the ESF projects that we fund support people to engage and re-engage with the 

labour market.  That might be work or training.  That is the remit of the ESF.  Participants can either be in work 

and progressing in work or they might be unemployed. 

 

Usually, because that is the focus of the ESF, they need to be at a disadvantage in the labour market for one 

reason or another.  It may be to do with personal characteristics, maybe a BAME background or being disabled, 

it might be their life experiences if they have been homeless or an ex-offender or it might be due to low skill 

levels or a lack of relevant experience.  That type of thing.  For all sorts of reasons, the individuals we support 

have been disadvantaged in the labour market.  Helen will give you a bit more detail on the types of activities 

that our projects provide but they are all around improving people’s readiness to work, whether that is through 

training or through some of those softer skills, often mentoring or volunteering. 

 

The other thing that is probably worth mentioning is that ESF also enables us to provide some of the 

wraparound support that quite a lot of the participants need.  We can pay for childcare, we can provide debt 

advice and we can fund travel costs, or our projects can as part of the package of support they offer.  There is 

also some funding in there for activities that bring employers and training organisations together to improve 

the relevance of the training and education provision out there, or the sector, for employers’ needs.  There is a 

good example that the ESFA have been running over the last few years but that the Education and Youth team 

here, my team, worked with them to develop, called the Career Clusters Project, which brings employers and 

schools together to try to improve the careers advice and guidance for young people. 

 

It might be worth Helen saying a bit more about some of the other projects that we deliver and the types of 

people that we are supporting through them, if you would like. 

 

Helen Stonelake (Project Manager, Regeneration, GLA):  I will give you a bit more information on the 

actual groups we are looking to support and how we are looking to support them.  Just move me on if it is too 

much information. 

 

Page 13



 

With the ESF we can focus on supporting groups who are very far from the labour market or face particular 

barriers.  At the moment our suite of programmes covers quite a lot of things.  We are looking generally to 

support about 10,000 people over the course of programme, hopefully, and 500 businesses.  We have projects 

at the moment that focus particularly on supporting veterans of the armed services, particularly early leavers 

from the armed services, supporting them with volunteering and holistic wraparound support to find 

employment and translate their skills into the civic employment market. 

 

We are looking at supporting young people who are at risk of dropping out of college, training or education, 

picking them up just before or as they drop out and supporting them to continue in a form of activity to help 

them get back into education, employment or training before they have been out of that for a while and it 

becomes more entrenched.  We are looking particularly at supporting care leavers to find employment.  It is a 

group that tends to face more barriers generally.  We are also looking at supporting a range of people with 

digital skills training. 

 

A lot of that is looking at how training providers and businesses can work collaboratively so that the training 

being provided is relevant to what the business needs are and they will serve businesses to access local pools of 

talent who have the right skills.  We have just launched a project looking at supporting early years' 

practitioners.  I think Julie [Sexton] mentioned that childcare is often a major barrier for people finding work or 

sustaining work.  London has a particular issue with this, being very expensive.  Although it is high quality the 

quality and the flexibility is not always there so we are looking at supporting leaders and how they grow their 

management, leadership skills and business skills so they can sustain and grow quality practices, particularly for 

families who face more disadvantage.  We have a number of high level skills -- 

 

Shaun Bailey AM (Chairman):  Can I just slightly change your focus? 

 

Helen Stonelake (Project Manager, Regeneration, GLA):  Yes. 

 

Shaun Bailey AM (Chairman):  Who evaluates the effectiveness of the things that you are implementing? 

 

Julie Sexton (Senior Programme Manager, Regeneration, GLA):  What we are doing this time round, we 

always have an independent evaluation of our programmes, and in fact I think Learning and Work Institute did 

our last one, combined with SQW for our GLA ESF youth programme which finished 18 months ago.  For this 

programme, because it is a programme with a lot of relatively small quite niche projects, what we are doing is 

we have arranged for all the projects to do self-evaluations; they might have an independent evaluator do 

them or they might do them themselves.  However, we are supporting them in that whereby we have an 

external evaluation company providing workshops and one-to-one support for those organisations to help 

them develop up their theories of change and refine what the measures are that they will use to be able to 

show whether they have delivered the support programme that they want. 

 

Shaun Bailey AM (Chairman):  Where is all this collected?  Because obviously we want to understand best 

practice, how is that best practice transmitted out there?  What effect will this have on the development of the 

policies around the Adult Education Budget (AEB)?  Where are all these things coalescing together? 

 

Julie Sexton (Senior Programme Manager, Regeneration, GLA):  The AEB one is quite a good link 

because we, within the ESF team, will actually shortly be moving over to the Skills team and we are working 

very closely to develop an ESF programme, which will be much larger than our current one.  It will be matched 

with devolved AEB funding which will enable us to do things on a bigger scale and perhaps tackle some of the 

areas we have not been able to with our current programme.  Therefore, our evaluations are all available 

publicly, we share them with people.  I actually think that the last one - apologies for this - does not seem to 

be on the internet but it is publicly available and we have shared it with people; it is out there. 

Page 14



 

 

Therefore, we obviously have looked at the Skills Strategy.  We have not led it, that is Michael’s team but we 

have commented on it and input to it and we have shared our documentation with the team as they have 

developed the strategy and as they are developing the AEB, we are working quite closely with them. 

 

Shaun Bailey AM (Chairman):  We will come back to the AEB.  Just to quickly focus on Tony [Wilson].  

What works for groups that are far away?  Is there a set of tactics that has worked internationally, nationally; 

how are we focusing on these groups with tried and tested methods? 

 

Tony Wilson (Director of Policy and Research, Learning and Work Institute):  Yes, if I can answer that 

then I think we would all be in a much better place; I can give it a go.  There is a whole industry around trying 

to really understand what works for whom, how and in what context and a lot of this is quite context specific 

as well.  What might work with young black men, for example, in South London, in terms of improving 

aspirations and engagement and making the right decisions around skills and employment and so on, may not 

work in the same way at all for single parents or mothers who live in Tower Hamlets or somewhere.  Therefore, 

actually understanding context and how we can better tailor and deliver interventions to different groups is 

very important. 

 

I think there are four really key things that we are trying to address in our labour market programmes and 

interventions.  Firstly, it is improving people’s ability to prepare for work and to access work and look for work.  

These are classic employment related skills but it is also about confidence, self-confidence, self-belief and the 

ability to deal with setbacks but it can also be things like how to navigate the jobs market, which we tend to 

think now it is all about online, it is not.  A lot of it is quite old-fashioned actually; a lot of it is about who you 

know and how you engage.  That is the first. 

 

The second is about addressing particular barriers to work and I think we have real challenges -- we have a lot 

of challenges in that first point, by the way, in London and I think careers are a case in point.  However, on the 

second, addressing barriers is really important.  Parents is a case in point, costs of childcare, which has already 

been referenced, is a huge issue.  Disabled people: health-related barriers that might make it harder to get into 

work or indeed once you are in work to stay there.  Those are two examples.  Also older people with care and 

responsibilities and so on.  Young adult carers would be a case in point too. 

 

Those are two things.  The third then is around how we tackle signals that are sent by people being out of 

work.  When you are out of work and you are applying for a job you are far less likely to get a job than people 

already in work because if you have 100 applicants and one who has got a six-month gap in their CV or has no 

qualifications, then that person goes to the bottom of the queue.  You cannot address that by just getting 

people to apply for more jobs or by helping them with their childcare.  Addressing the signal of being out of 

work is a really significant challenge and it often requires things like work experience but also quite intensive 

skills support and even job creation programmes sometimes. 

 

Then the fourth is skills and that can be occupation specific skills, and in London there are particular 

challenges around technical skills, around apprenticeships, take-up of and access to.  However, it is also just 

job related skills really: time management, how you work in teams, communication skills and some IT and so on 

skills.   

 

Now, I always say if you are thinking about programmes, think about what are the challenges you are trying to 

address for your group.  What do you think are the issues that are preventing those people from being able to 

be secure in employment?  Think about it in terms of those four things and then think about how the 

interventions that you are designing can help to address that.  All of them should, at their heart, have really 

effective relationships between a coach or an adviser or a mentor and the individual because so much of this is 

Page 15



 

about maintaining self-belief and confidence and having support there.  Not learned helplessness but the right 

kind of support. 

 

Then it is thinking about the design of your interventions.  If it is skills needs then thinking about how you 

deliver that and how you engage with the right partners.  If it is about barriers, thinking about how you work 

with health services or childcare providers or landlords.  If you have particular issues about signals, take 

long-term unemployment as a case in point, what are we doing about work experience, etc?  I could go on but 

there is no simple answer for what works.  I do think so much of it is about personal relations, motivation, the 

right kind of support and helping people to deal with set-backs, know their way around the labour market and 

get the right support when they need it. 

 

One final thing I will say is getting out of silos, not thinking about this in terms of skills or in terms of 

employment or in terms of regeneration or housing or childcare.  If you think about how we integrate that and 

make it seamless, certainly for the individual, for us as practitioners, we try to do the best we can to join it up, 

is really key.  There are a number of areas that have put system change right at the top of their priorities.  I 

would personally like to see system change much clearer in the Skills Strategy, transforming actually how 

services work together because I think that is ultimately how we drive change; is thinking about this in terms of 

health, economy, skills, local growth, social inclusion, not just one silo about skills or whatever. 

 

Shaun Bailey AM (Chairman):  Thank you.  I am going to move on to my colleague Navin. 

 

Navin Shah AM (Deputy Chair):  I want to explore three areas specifically.  One is on unemployment, then 

go on to the barriers, Tony [Wilson] has been talking about those, and also the issue about people getting 

stuck in low skill related jobs. 

 

Now, the figures here show that, for example, London’s unemployment rate currently is at a record low at 

about 6%.  It is still above the national average.  Given this situation what do you see as the main barriers for 

active participation in the labour market by Londoners?  I do not know whether somebody from the GLA or 

Tony want to start. 

 

Tony Wilson (Director of Policy and Research, Learning and Work Institute):  I am very happy to go 

first, briefly, because it kind of carries on from what I was saying a moment ago.  One thing I would say, I 

suppose before this, is London is obviously a jobs machine.  It creates enormous jobs growth and 

opportunities.  The trouble is it does not always do that for London residents, and I will hold my hand up as 

somebody who works in London but lives on the south coast.  I am one of those people who comes in and 

does a job in London but is not of the city.  A large part of this is about we do not have a problem here about 

labour demand.  There is stuff about quality of jobs but the real challenge here is about how we connect 

people to the jobs that are being created all the time in the city. 

 

As I said, clearly issues around skills and access to skills are really important and issues around how we give 

people the right support to find work is very important.  However, the particular challenge in London is that we 

do have quite a significant sphere of disadvantage in the city, to an extent that we do see in other cities as well 

but where that often manifests itself in different ways, very diverse groups, and how we think about how we 

address that can be different for different people.  A large part of this is that we have significantly 

disadvantaged residents.  However, there are some specific London challenges around, for example, 

performance of 16 to 18 [year olds] which is not as good as it is below 16.  Apprenticeships: we do not create 

as many apprenticeships in London and it is certainly not an integral strategy, if you like, for young people as it 

is in other places.  Issues around childcare, around housing and other things that can make it harder for people 

to travel for work are particularly challenging and this issue about travelling for work is really important in the 

London context. 

Page 16



 

 

For the GLA and for councils and other public services working in this space, how we co-ordinate across 

activities is a huge challenge because we have different layers of government; we have national government 

and local government, different areas of responsibility and that co-ordination piece is really hard and I think it 

will be a real challenge in the Skills Strategy as well.  How we make sure that we do not just look in the narrow 

confines of an individual borough but we are able to look across London, so, yes, quite a set of challenges, I 

think. 

 

Michael Heanue (Principal Policy Officer (Skills), GLA):  I can add to that.  You may be aware that in 

2016 there was a review of the skills system in London where all further education was looked at very closely.  

That encouraged providers and local stakeholders, including local authorities, to actually look at what is being 

offered in their area with a view to improving the curriculum offer over time.  It did focus more upon the 

financial aspect of the skills system and where there might be efficient mergers taking place to make that more 

efficient.  That was a very good first step, I think, in getting the conversation going about how we could be 

more locally responsive to what the skills needs are.  We will be very clear in the Skills Strategy about the role 

of employer engagement in achieving that.  We must have employers on board informing what the curriculum 

is, at the right levels and the right levels of accessibility too. 

 

We are going to drive that very clearly through the Mayor’s Construction Academy.  It exists with employers 

and providers in the same space.  That, to me, is a huge opportunity we can maximise getting that right but 

employers being in the space is absolutely essential.  Working closely with the sub-regional partnerships 

through both the area reviews and now the development and the roll out of the Skills Strategy is moving us in 

the right direction. 

 

Navin Shah AM (Deputy Chair):  Did you want to comment from a local authority perspective? 

 

Danny Edwards (Strategy and Partnerships Manager, Southwark Council):  I would just like to talk a 

bit about some of the work we are doing in Southwark.  A lot of the focus is around dealing with the four 

issues that Tony [Wilson] has highlighted across the board really, particularly the top two in terms of 

Southwark residents to prepare and access work and addressing particular barriers.  We have big investment in 

our Southwark Works Initiative which supports Southwark residents to access employment with a particular 

focus on those residents that are furthest from the labour market with particular barriers including learning 

disabilities, physical and mental health issues, vulnerable young people, the over-50s.  I think what is critical to 

the success of those programmes is a commissioned service that works with a range of providers who are 

specialists in their area, so they understand the issues that our residents with these complexities are dealing 

with and they understand how best to work with them.  They know the borough; they know how to support 

residents to navigate the kind of landscape, if you like.  It is not without its challenges and I would not say it is 

a fully integrated system.  I think if you could identify a fully integrated system somewhere then they have 

cracked it.  There are definite challenges around that. 
 

For example, the Southwark Works case-workers know who to call in our housing department if they are 

dealing with a resident with housing issues.  It does not fast track that resident in terms of accessing that 

support but it facilitates conversations that may not otherwise have been had, and, as I say, it helps residents 

navigate the system, which, without that kind of support, is just extremely difficult. 

 

Moving on to construction; I was asked to particularly talk about our Southwark Construction Skills Centre.  

That is really around -- 

 

Navin Shah AM (Deputy Chair):  If I can stop you there. 

 

Page 17



 

Danny Edwards (Strategy and Partnerships Manager, Southwark Council):  Yes, you can. 

 

Navin Shah AM (Deputy Chair):  We are picking up construction related topics later on.  We talked about 

the issues about the level of unemployment, we talked about barriers.  Also, when you have jobs, for example, 

often we hear that people get stuck in low skill related jobs with low wages to go with that as well.  In your 

experience is that the true reflection of what can and does happen?  How can we get over that particular 

aspect because it is critical that there is that progression at all levels?  What is being done? 

 

Julie Sexton (Senior Programme Manager, Regeneration, Greater London Authority):  The evidence 

is certainly there.  The Skills Strategy highlights some of the statistics that show that for London residents that 

are employed in low skilled occupations there is not much transfer into higher skilled occupations.  People 

clearly are getting stuck there and there is quite a lot of cycling from low paid job to low paid job that goes on, 

there is definitely evidence of that.  I think probably Tony [Wilson] knows more of the detail on that. 

 

Shaun Bailey AM (Chairman):  The statistics around that, having looked at them, are evident but what is the 

structural problem?  Is it a fact of those people not having access to training or is it a fact that those jobs do 

not exist? 

 

Tony Wilson (Director of Policy and Research, Learning and Work Institute):  It is both and more.  

There have been long-running trends towards often lower quality and lower paid work being more prevalent in 

the economy, and partly that is about globalisation and global trade.  It is this idea of the disappearing middle, 

if you like.  There are very highly skilled jobs, which are increasingly tradable or can be automated or whatever, 

the things that really drive real value-added job creation in cities like London.  There are then often quite low 

skilled and low paid jobs, which are not really tradable, like hairdressing and cleaning where you will always rely 

on people being able to do those things.  There is a sort of top and bottom.  Then the middle, there are a lot 

of jobs which can be traded, which can be delivered by other countries at cheaper prices, or indeed can be 

automated and so on. 

 

We have seen what has been described as a kind of polarisation in the labour market over decades but we have 

also seen a couple of trends in recent years.  One is a reduction in unionisation, and then generally a kind of 

change in the balance of power between employers and workers when negotiating pay and so on, and that has 

undoubtedly been a factor.  I do not want to overplay it but it has been a factor in things like the reduction in 

workplace training, the reduction in collective bargaining and getting different pay settlements and so on.  

However, also the big recession a decade ago was a massive cyclical shock and that led to a real explosion 

particularly in temporary and insecure employment, which has now come back down again.  However, what you 

will tend to see in recessions is these kinds of cyclical things can become structural.  In previous recessions a 

good example of that would be like long-term unemployment where people become unemployed in a recession 

but if you do not deal with it then they will become long-term unemployed and you get significant issues. 

 

What we are seeing is a labour market that is increasingly being characterised by low paid and insecure work.  

That has become more of a feature in the last few years, post the recession, and it has not completely gone 

back to how it was.  There are various things which we might suggest actually.  There is competition for jobs 

increases, as it will, particularly in a tighter labour market, fewer people competing for more jobs so you might 

see some rebalancing of that.  Those structural things might start to unwind a bit but there are long-running 

things that are weighing against that.  We have these issues around low pay and low pay cycles and of course 

what matters is relative pay.  When housing costs are exploding, a massive asset bubble boom fuelled by 

printed money and everything else and cost of living is increasing at the moment, then even if your nominal 

pay is increasing your real pay is going down.  These challenges around working poverty are really big. 

 

Page 18



 

Navin Shah AM (Deputy Chair):  The question is what are we doing collectively; the GLA, the Mayor, local 

authorities, private sector to improve the situation?  Because once you are stuck it is almost like you could be 

unemployed.  OK, if you are lucky you might have a job, low paid, maybe low skilled job if you have not got 

skills yet and you get stuck in it.  Surely that cannot carry on.  What are we doing to improve it? 

 

Tony Wilson (Director of Policy and Research, Learning and Work Institute):  There are certain things 

that you can do that are being done, particularly on how we better support individuals, what are called supply 

side measures, supporting individuals to progress in work and to improve.  I should say I would not want to 

massively overplay this because while insecure employment is a feature of the labour market it is not like it is 

the majority of people in work.  In our estimate we think about between one in five or one in four workers in 

London are low paid and a good proportion of those have been stuck in low paid work for at least a year.  It is 

an issue but it is not the whole labour market. 

 

The GLA has done really good work on work progression and in-work progression support.  It is much easier for 

us to think about how we can support individuals to find new jobs or to improve their training so they can 

progress in work.  The GLA in-work progression work is a case in point of that.  Also, the Trust for London has 

funded a lot of voluntary and community sector led activity which we have been involved in too called Step 

Up.  The funding for that will be coming to an end fairly shortly but that has been working with particular 

groups, for example Latin American cleaners in South London, residents of social housing in Tulse Hill, young 

creatives stuck in self-employed creative jobs, etc, to help them to progress.  That is the stuff we can definitely 

do on the supply side and a lot of that is about how we make -- so Adult Education Budget devolution is a 

case in point; real opportunities to use that funding to support in-work groups in a way that national 

centralised funding does not enable us to do. 

 

I do think there is something else though, which is harder, on the demand side, which is about how we address 

some of those bigger structural challenges.  I think the Assembly and the GLA could play a really important 

convening and influencing role in encouraging employers, probably at a sector level, working with particular 

sectors, to really think about how they can improve their offer.  Really investing in, probably technical 

education is a route into thinking about this; thinking through how we get more consistency and recognising 

career ladders within sectors and then taking a more co-operative and collaborative approach to how we do 

that.  There are a number of examples in the United States, of all places, where this has been done really well, 

looking at career ladders at city levels.  I do think that has to be part of it as well.  It is all about how we 

engage employers in different sectors. 

 

Helen Stonelake (Project Manager, Regeneration, GLA):  We have a number of ESF projects in 

development which are seeking to do what Tony [Wilson] just said with the in-work progression support and 

we are looking at sectors which are typically low paid where actually that might be part of the nature of the 

sector.  We are working with the Cultural and Creative Industries Team to look at how we can support 

employability and skills development in the creative enterprise zones which are currently being developed.  

One element of that is looking at supporting smaller creative or maybe even self-employed artists to do skills 

gaps analysis and find out what kind of business support, what training we could provide them with which 

would help them grow their business or potentially people in their business.  Where they have very low revenue 

what we can do to provide skills mentoring, coaching and, again, holistic support that is going to enable them 

to progress skills-wise. 

 

There is not always necessarily progression into a high paid role as an element of that because actually 

sometimes that is the nature of the industry.  In the same way, the care industries that we are looking at 

supporting as well, care industries have a lot of social value but by their nature have quite low pay.  However, 

there are skills development that we can do within that which will help people grow and sustain their 

Page 19



 

businesses which enables them to remain in business and provide more social benefit while helping someone 

get more work satisfaction in the workplace.  They feed that down to their staff. 

 

We are also looking at doing some work with the London Economic Action Partnership (LEAP) with the Growth 

Hub to support smaller businesses which are led by people who are under-represented in business generally.  

We are particularly looking at disabled people, women and BAME communities and seeing what we can do, 

again, to support them with skills gap analyses and see where we can provide Voluntary Sector Forum  funding 

to provide qualifications and training that they may not, as small businesses, have the capacity to deliver 

themselves. 

 

Julie Sexton (Senior Programme Manager, Regeneration, GLA):  With the new AEB programme, within 

that there are strands which are looking particularly at skills for people in work and training for people in work 

in order to help them to develop.  As Helen [Stonelake] said, one of the issues is that it does not necessarily 

automatically lead to someone getting a higher paid job or a better job but at least you are potentially 

increasing the skill level so people have more transferability and more options about the labour market. 

 

Michael Heanue (Principal Policy Officer (Skills), GLA):  I have come across some good examples of 

partnership working by tackling the challenge around accessing these individuals, actually getting to them to 

be able to help them.  Examples that spring to mind are that the housing associations are very well positioned 

in this place with their residents.  Similarly, there was an exercise - I am not sure if you are aware of it, 

Tony [Wilson] - in West London some years ago called the Skills Escalator. 

 

Tony Wilson (Director of Policy and Research, Learning and Work Institute):  We evaluated it. 

 

Michael Heanue (Principal Policy Officer (Skills), Greater London Authority):  Oh, right.  There you 

go.  However, that was very bespoke in that it was all about accessing low skilled low paid individuals in the 

private rental sector and it was very targeted and there are very useful evaluations of that.  Julie [Sexton] has 

mentioned already the AEB presents an opportunity in the future, as does the Construction Academy scheme 

where there are tangible programmes that we can actually drive forward.  However, in the meantime there are 

pockets of activity that we can learn from that are making a difference. 

 

Danny Edwards (Strategy and Partnerships Manager, Southwark Council):  Sorry, may I just add 

something very quickly because we are also doing some work in this area?  I think there is definitely a 

movement towards a focus on better quality better paid work throughout all of our programmes and that has 

to be welcomed.  One of the good things about universal credit is it is moving the conversation away from 

more hours to better paid work and how we can support our residents into better paid work.  Southwark works 

in partnership with our partners in Lambeth and Lewisham through our Better Placed initiative.  We have done 

quite a lot of work around supporting residents into work, looking at the whole wrap-around support, the 

whole systems approach.  We have also recently started to pilot a new initiative around supporting residents 

from low paid jobs into better paid jobs.  It is very early days at the moment but we are optimistic that that 

pilot will deliver some really good learning for us which we will be able to share with colleagues.  But like others 

there is definitely a movement in that direction. 

 

Shaun Bailey AM (Chairman):  Just before I move you on to talk to my colleague, this idea of progressing 

for employment, how well is that replicated in training?  Because obviously you can go in, you can get a level 

of training but can you get the next level of training to move yourself up?  The two things, to my mind, seem 

related.  Will that be in the strategy how people can ladder up? 

 

Michael Heanue (Principal Policy Officer (Skills), GLA):  Absolutely, recognising where progression 

opportunities exist but in the areas of the economy where the growth presents itself.  It is about being relevant 

Page 20



 

to what is actually happening on the ground and, again, I come back to that being led by employers being in 

the space that make those decisions.  The Mayor did talk about using advance learner loans as part of the 

solution here in the manifesto.  We need to explore that as a policy area; how we promote other means of 

accessing funds and the means with which to improve your level of attainment, whether that is through the 

Adult Education Budget or additional funds that may be coming available at the same time. 

 

Tony Devenish AM:  I am going back to Danny.  You can make your pitch now in terms of all the work you 

have done on construction, please.  The question specifically is our focus on construction and the jobs 

generated through large scale regeneration projects.  In your professional experience what are the biggest 

barriers to employment opportunities created in construction?  Can I ask you to be a little bit specific?  

Because I think, like all these things, we are very good at having these general discussions but I have not really 

picked up many specifics of how we are going to do things better in the future. 

 

Danny Edwards (Strategy and Partnerships Manager, Southwark Council):  I will try to be specific and 

then I will try to articulate how we are overcoming some of those barriers locally through the Skills Centre.  

One of the biggest challenges we have, particularly in Southwark, is we are very lucky we have a huge amount 

of regeneration on our doorstep and as a result of that we have a huge number of jobs, both in terms of 

construction jobs and end use jobs.  Particularly in terms of construction, how we equip Southwark residents 

with the skills they need to be able to access those jobs is one of the big challenges.  We have a very successful 

local Section 1061 programme which does generate a huge number of job opportunities for Southwark 

residents.  One of the traditional challenges is how we are going to access the residents with the skills to be 

able to access these roles, both in terms of jobs and apprenticeship opportunities.  That was one of the drivers 

behind the Southwark Construction Skills Centre, how we improve the supply of local residents into those jobs 

by equipping them with the pre-employability skills and the construction skills they need.  There is a 

recognised skills gap around construction.  Again, that was one of the driving forces behind the Skills Centre 

itself. 

 

We are in partnership with Lendlease so it is a good example of the public and private sector working together.  

When we commissioned the delivery partner for the Skills Centre we had a host of organisations pitching up 

with menus of what they would deliver.  The successful candidate did not do that because for them it was 

more around how they were going to engage the employers - the construction firms - working in the borough 

to understand what skills needs were there, the skills needs that are coming on stream and then making sure 

the Centre works in real time to provide those.  That is going to be a real element of the success of the Centre.  

It moves away from that learner-demand to that employer-demand approach.  It is genuinely employer led in 

that perspective. 

 

One of the other big challenges is around how we promote the value of the sector in terms of a place where 

people want to work.  There are definite perceptions of the sector, both in terms of residents who are out of 

work - prospective employees for the sector - and also, for young people, their families as well.  A big driver for 

the Skills Centre was not only around working with employers to provide local residents with the skills those 

employers want.  It is also doing that much bigger cultural education piece in terms of working with schools, in 

particular, and other institutions to show that the construction sector can offer a good, genuine and well-paid 

career for people, and also that within the sector there is a range of opportunities that will attract a lot of 

people.  John White, the Centre Manager, is a very passionate guy who lives and breathes the Skills Centre.  He 

likes to tell a story whereby they host visits from schools.  At the outset he will ask for a hands-up in terms of 

who sees this sector as relevant for them, “Can you see yourself working here?”  Normally at the outset there 

will be one or two hands out of a class of 20 or so.  Then he will ask the same question at the end of the 

session when almost without fail a majority of the hands go up. 

                                                 
1 Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990. 

Page 21



 

 

It is around the supply, it is around the skills gap and it is around promoting the sector.  Those three things are 

fundamental to how the Construction Skills Centre works. 

 

Tony Devenish AM:  You mentioned culture.  It is not just the culture of the residents it is the culture of - 

dare I say - a major developer who is running a very male Australian kind of traditional construction company.  

Does it understand the softer problems within inner London, perhaps in terms of how we take on people from 

a very diverse background?  When I walk into these organisations they all look like me still. 

 

Danny Edwards (Strategy and Partnerships Manager, Southwark Council):  That is absolutely right.  

When I was about to jump in before and talk about construction in terms of inclusion, a big part of what the 

Skills Centre is about is including the local community and working with employers and residents to promote 

the industry to women, to the BAME community and to people with disabilities.  The provider is targeted with 

what we think are quite stretching targets.  They are making real headway and making real changes in terms of 

introducing new people to the sector very successfully. 

 

Tony Devenish AM:  Finally - and then I will give way to my friend to my left - in terms of those targets, are 

you driving those targets as the London Borough of Southwark in partnership with, in this case, Lendlease or is 

it leading? 

 

Danny Edwards (Strategy and Partnerships Manager, Southwark Council):  It is very much a 

partnership.  There is a governance arrangement that includes both organisations and a Board that includes a 

director from Lendlease and the Cabinet Member for Jobs, Skills and Innovation from Southwark that oversees 

the delivery.  The delivery partner, for a robust process of monitoring, reports to both organisations in terms of 

reporting on its progress against a range of outcome measures and impacts.  For us it is not only about the 

number of residents that have been trained but how many of those residents have gone on to get a job.  We 

have put a real onus on the provider to make sure it continues to track clients as they go through the Centre. 

 

It is called the Southwark Construction Skills Centre and obviously Southwark Council was the main driver in 

terms of paying for the build of the Centre and it is very much our Centre.  However, it operates very much as a 

sub-regional and regional Centre.  You do not have to be a Southwark resident to access the Centre.  About 

40% of people who go through the Centre are from Southwark but the rest are from the surrounding 

boroughs. 

 

The Centre itself operates on a commercial basis.  It works with employers to understand what they want.  It is 

providing a service for those employers and there is a payment for that.  It then provides that developer with a 

flow of people who have the skills that employer is looking for. 

 

Nicky Gavron AM:  I would like to probe a little bit more.  I am a woman living in Southwark.  I am tied to my 

locality as I do not have much money, I cannot afford to go to Hackney and it would cost too much to travel 

and so on.  I want to have work in my local community.  I have kids.  What are you going to offer me?  I am 

assuming this is in construction and not a back-office job that could be in anything kind of thing.  What kinds 

of things would you be offering me, what opportunities for jobs?  What sort of jobs would you be trying to 

pitch to me? 

 

Danny Edwards (Strategy and Partnerships Manager, Southwark Council):  It depends on what was 

available.  That is the point; it works with what employers need at that time.  What it would try to do is to 

understand what skills you had, what your motivations were to work in the Centre and what skills you needed, 

whether they are the softer skills or more specific skills. 

 

Page 22



 

Nicky Gavron AM:  Be tangible! 

 

Danny Edwards (Strategy and Partnerships Manager, Southwark Council):  Are you interested in dry 

lining, or brickwork, or is it an office job - a procurement job - within the sector?  It does depend on your 

motivations as an individual, your personal circumstances and where you want to go.  That is what the Skills 

Centre will try to do, understand your circumstances.  It may be that after a conversation - you have talked 

about being a mum, having childcare responsibilities - a career in construction is not right for you at that 

particular point in time.  Again, that is as much a part of the process as anything.  It is about helping you to 

navigate the process.  The Skills Centre is very well engaged locally.  It works very closely with Southwark 

Works, which I have mentioned previously.  If the Skills Centre cannot help you it will put you in touch with a 

partner that can. 

 

Nicky Gavron AM:  That is very good.  My perception of some of the skills is that the employer might need 

them now but will not need them in six months’ time, and then what do I do? 

 

Danny Edwards (Strategy and Partnerships Manager, Southwark Council):  That is one of the 

challenges with construction in particular.  Coming back to the discussion we had previously around Good 

Work and the continuous upskilling that was mentioned earlier, one of the visions of the Skills Centre is 

upskilling the industry, working with people who already work in construction to help them move up the ladder 

and on to their next role.  It has as challenging targets around that as it has around supporting people who are 

just embarking on their career.  It as big a focus. 

 

Nicky Gavron AM:  The Planning Committee has produced a report on how we can accelerate house building, 

all sorts of building actually, through modular and MMC [Modern Methods of Construction].  It opens up the 

possibility of a very different perception of the industry.  It could attract people who are interested in 

engineering and might be more attractive to women.  I am wondering what your experience is of that, offering 

jobs in assembly or different kinds of jobs in precision manufacturing. 

 

Danny Edwards (Strategy and Partnerships Manager, Southwark Council):  Lendlease, our delivery 

partner, is looking at modular construction on one of its sites.  We have had discussions with it around what 

that is going to look like, both different types of roles and less roles.  That is one of the big challenges going 

forward.  As modular construction becomes more and more mainstream there are going to be less roles as a 

result of the impact of that change in the sector.  That transition is not going to happen overnight.  As far as I 

understand it, there are challenges around the physical supply of the manufacturing of these things that means 

there is still going to be a high reliance on traditional methods of construction for some time yet.  I do not 

think we are going to see a revolution so much as an evolution. 

 

Shaun Bailey AM (Chairman):  Before I bring in my colleague I want to talk again about your academy.  

What is very clear is that it is called a Southwark academy.  I was very happy to hear you say that 40% of the 

people who go through it are from Southwark.  I live in Havering, for instance.  We have comparable levels of 

unemployment.  How do my young people find out about your service, is that possible for them? 

 

Danny Edwards (Strategy and Partnerships Manager, Southwark Council):  It is certainly possible. 

 

Shaun Bailey AM (Chairman):  How likely is it? 

 

Danny Edwards (Strategy and Partnerships Manager, Southwark Council):  We are in the very enviable 

position, although it is something we need to tackle, that the Skills Centre has been so successful there is an 

issue of capacity now.  The conversations we are having with the provider is whether we build up, whether we 

build outwards or whether we look at other methods of delivery.  The Centre is at capacity.  Therefore, in terms 

Page 23



 

of going out and doing a massive marketing campaign to get an influx of additional residents, we are not in 

that place at the moment.  That is a good place to be in, in a way.  What we do not want to happen is for 

Southwark residents in particular, but any residents, not to be able to access the service because they cannot 

be accommodated.  The focus of the Centre for us is on supporting Southwark residents into the Centre. 

 

Shaun Bailey AM (Chairman):  I understand your Council paid for it.  However, are there any conversations 

going on about spreading best practice?  Obviously, the challenge for London is that London is a huge place.  

Much of the redevelopment is in the middle with boroughs such as Southwark.  Of course, there is 

unemployment around the outside of London as well.  The challenge for the GLA’s AEB and the other 

boroughs - where Southwark could be very helpful - is how we replicate that and spread some of the relative 

wealth of London outwards and not just lock it in Zone 1. 

 

Danny Edwards (Strategy and Partnerships Manager, Southwark Council):  That is absolutely right.  

The Centre itself works very proactively with the GLA to look at how the model can be replicated and also how 

the Centre can play an integral role in the Mayor’s construction academy initiative. 

 

Shaun Bailey AM (Chairman):  Maybe Michael can speak to this? 

 

Michael Heanue (Principal Policy Officer (Skills), GLA):  Yes, I was going to come in there because when 

we were researching how the Construction Academy would be configured, we did look to examples of good 

practice such as this, such as the one in Newham, there are several of these dotted around London.  We 

thought, “Well, that is what the model is, the model has to be a locally responsive offer that has revenue 

funded provision and employers with vacancies to fill that are put into the same space”.  We envisage there 

being up to six hubs around London in the first instance, and dependent upon the securing of additional 

revenue funds, we could increase that over time.  However, it is about offering an opportunity to present a 

local offer for those residents, not just in one location, but perhaps in six.  We are not locking that down, we 

will wait to see what the market comes back and tells us it needs. 

 

Tony Devenish AM:  Can I just quickly ask: you are not going to try to reinvent the wheel; you are going to 

use the existing centres around London, presumably partners around London, in your strategy? 

 

Michael Heanue (Principal Policy Officer (Skills), GLA):  You mean for the Construction Academy? 

Tony Devenish AM:  Yes. 

 

Michael Heanue (Principal Policy Officer (Skills), GLA):  If they meet our criteria, which is quite high.  We 

certainly learn from them and some of their mistakes, because you mentioned and I was very impressed for you 

to say about 40% of those accessing the centre are from the borough, but not all of them operate in that way, 

they want 100% and that is challenging. 

 

Shaun Bailey AM (Chairman):  I just make a plea for London, because we run the risk of being a 

zone 1 GLA, and when you come far east where we live, we have many, if not more problems than you have in 

the centre because you have all this redevelopment work, regeneration work, which we do not, but we certainly 

have people who should be benefiting from the wealth of London, and if this policy set is not done correctly 

we will not get that benefit for those residents, but moving on to London.   

 

Navin Shah AM (Deputy Chair):  We already covered aspects about underrepresented groups in particular 

BAME, the gender and the younger people and so on, and how both access and inclusion are being considered 

and interventions for those underrepresented groups.  Specific to that, what recommendations do you think 

you would like to make to the Mayor [ Sadiq Khan] as he finalises his Skills Strategy? 

 

Page 24

https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Sadiq_Khan


 

Michael Heanue (Principal Policy Officer (Skills), Greater London Authority):  Tony, do you want to 

start? 

 

Tony Wilson (Director of Policy and Research, Learning and Work Institute):  I am happy to go first.  

The draft that went out for consultation, I thought that it looked good, thought there was a lot of really good 

stuff in it, and I think there are definitely some really strong proposals for the Mayor to take forward.  There 

are a few things that we might do.  I mentioned earlier about system change.  I do think it is really important 

that we think about skills and employment much more broadly than just the particular levers or funding 

streams that we are getting access to.  There is a real challenge, particularly around devolution of powers, 

where central government plays this game, this ‘earned autonomy’ game, of devolving powers to local 

government, and they devolve it in silos, and put constraints and restrictions around how that money is then 

used and how it is done, which then encourages that local level of government to then operate in silos, in 

effect, but then have to report back up from there as well. 

 

Then from time to time, as with the devolution deals and the city deals, there is an attempt for a more 

comprehensive deal which looks across silos and tries to integrate, but then in practice when it comes to be 

implemented usually we end up back with meeting readiness criteria for the AEB devolution, ensuring that we 

deliver the national entitlement and ensuring that we have clear plans for stability in the sector, etc.  The 

benefit of devolution must be getting horizontal integrations.  We get out into the vertical silos and we work 

horizontally and think about how we can join the services up. 

 

I would make a plea for really setting out how the GLA in London and the governance and government of 

London can really use its convening power, and use the power of councils as well, and work with, for example, 

the National Health Service, work with schools and academy chains and so on, work with colleges and work 

across services to really try to have a really properly integrated strategy.  I think that would be challenge one. 

 

Secondly, I’d think about a strong focus on employment as well.  Jobcentre Plus is not a devolved service, but 

the DWP, Jobcentre Plus in London does work very closely with boroughs and it works very closely with those 

who are delivering services.  Therefore, trying to cut a deal and work effectively with DWP and Jobcentre Plus 

in London, for example, case in point, Universal Credit: there are real risks with it, but there are opportunities 

too.  I think it would be really important, that focus on employment outcomes.  Not just doing this as a skills 

pipeline issue, but a real on employment outcomes, that is key. 

 

I suppose the third thing is - there are a few related things about actually the mechanics of how we deliver 

effective support.  In particular, about how we engage with and work with partners and organisations that 

could help us to identify, reach, engage with and enrol really disadvantaged groups.  The biggest risk in doing 

employment and skills support is that we reach the people who always do that sort of stuff, who would always 

benefit from it, and we do not reach the people who are really disadvantaged, in particular the long-term 

workers.  That is where things like housing associations and voluntary community organisations, but also things 

like General Practitioners, community health practitioners and - where they still exist - children’s centres, 

engaging with nurseries and so on, and using those extensive networks that we have. 

 

There is a point about engagement and then there is a point about the provision and how we can do more of 

what works.  We talked about some of that, and it was thinking about how we can better align and bring in 

things like group support - where we think that works - work experience, access to appropriate skills training, 

the right kind of childcare or housing or other support.  It is very easy for me on the outside to be a critic and 

say, “Here’s all the stuff you should do”, and it is really hard when you are inside it to do everything you might 

want to.  I think that focus on system change, on working through partners as far as we can, and really 

focusing on employment outcomes and how we can transform that kind of employment conversation, not just 

the skills one, would be three things I would focus on. 

Page 25



 

 

Navin Shah AM (Deputy Chair):  Would you add to this the GLA perspective? 

 

Michael Heanue (Principal Policy Officer (Skills), GLA):  Those are what we want to achieve.  We 

certainly want to have a better focus on employment outcomes, not just skills.  Furthermore, you mentioned 

about demonstrating readiness conditions.  That is partly about gaining the confidence of the marketplace, but 

also not destabilising the system as it stands in the first year, but being confident enough to push for change 

over time.  Yes, I think that what is proposed now does take account of what Tony [Wilson] says he would 

welcome seeing in the Strategy. 

 

Navin Shah AM (Deputy Chair):  It is a matter of making sure that the Strategy is fit for purpose and that it 

will deliver for both disadvantaged groups as well as overall skills that we have been talking about, etc.  

Anything that can come forward as recommendations now, any thoughts you have, or afterwards if you can, 

please, write to us.  It is important that we have documents that do deliver in the end.  Danny, do you want to 

come in? 

 

Danny Edwards (Strategy and Partnerships Manager, Southwark Council):  I am not sure what else 

there is to say.  I agree with all of the above. 

 

Navin Shah AM (Deputy Chair):  All right. 

 

Dr Onkar Sahota AM:  I want to explore the ESF.  Thinking about the things we talked about previously, 

what learning have you had from ESF and how that works in helping us get the skills necessary? 

 

Julie Sexton (Senior Programme Manager, Regeneration, GLA):  If I think about our last evaluation of 

our last programme, that was a programme specifically focusing on young people and three groups of 

disadvantaged young people.  There were those who had had multiple exclusions from school and, therefore, 

are more at risk of becoming need and being long-term need, young offenders and young disabled people.  

There is a particular risk for them of getting in a cycle of training course, another training course, another 

training course that never leads to work, and that is one of the issues we were trying to address, and so it was a 

very employment focused programme. 

 

There are some things that come out of the evaluations of those programmes that are really across the piece, 

and one of those is that there is a real need for continuity of support.  It goes back a bit to what some of the 

other people have been saying around integration and making sure that if you have not exactly got the right 

thing for this person, you are finding something else for them.  A lot of the client groups we work with, they 

have experienced situations where they get handed off all the time.  That is a particular issue for young 

offenders, but also a lot of other groups.  They are always being told, “This person will help you with this, and 

this person will help you with this, and this person will help you with this”, there is no one who brings it all 

together for them. 

 

One of the key learnings on the evaluation side was that continuity of an adviser who is there, who does refer 

them on - because they are not a specialist in everything, nobody is a specialist in everything - but then they 

are there to pick them up again after that bit of intervention that another organisation has provided.  That is a 

really key element when you are working with people who are particularly disadvantaged.  It enables those 

relationships of trust to be built.  Although I think group workshops do work for some people, one to one 

support is still really critical for a lot of the people that we are talking about. 

 

The voluntary nature of our, particularly, ESF projects is very important and a lot of Jobcentre Plus 

programmes are mandatory, and I understand the reasons why they have to be, but I do think it makes a 

Page 26



 

difference to the participants that they can choose to come and they choose to participate.  I think that 

voluntary nature is quite important. 

 

Our programmes, even with the employment projects, there was still quite a lot of emphasis on people’s 

options in terms of education and training, whether in work, if they were going on to employment or just the 

options open to them, the advice and the like. 

 

The other thing that was key, and it was particularly key on the project for young disabled people - but I would 

say it is key across the board and it is something that is very hard to do - is the employer links.  Across the 

board with training projects for disadvantaged groups, whether they are ESF funded or not, providers find it 

very hard quite often to get good links with employers that result in good opportunities for participants.  There 

are many good examples out there but still, as a generalisation, it is a very difficult area, and where I think 

projects work well is where those connections are made and where the providers recognise that it is not just 

the person being supported that needs help, but also quite often the employer needs advice and support, 

whether it is their recruitment practices or their understanding of issues in the workplace about how to engage 

with, in our case, a young person, about how to engage with the person so that they do not just say, “No, this 

is not working”, and then that person has lost that job and that is another rejection for them. 

 

I think that working with employers is actually really hard to do, but as important often as working with 

beneficiaries.  I do not know if others come from that experience. 

 

Dr Onkar Sahota AM:  Thinking about the ESF funded programmes in particular, how are they linked with 

the other GLA regeneration programmes?  What is the interlink and connectivity between the two? 

 

Julie Sexton (Senior Programme Manager, Regeneration, GLA):  This goes back to Tony’s silos, it is 

actually very difficult to link regeneration programmes and ESF, and part of the problem is that most 

regeneration funds are capital funding, and the ESF rules make it very difficult to bring capital and revenue 

funding together so we see all the benefits.  For example, the construction project is one, we can see all the 

benefits, but it is in practice quite a difficult thing to do.  Providers might have two different contracts, so 

there will be different reporting and different monitoring.  It becomes quite complex to do.  The timelines 

might be very different. 

 

A capital project in a local area might take two or three years to build, at what point does the training project 

engage with that?  Funding them both at the same time might not be the most appropriate way of doing it.  

There are lots of technical difficulties in terms of bringing the two together and it has always, in theory, been 

possible, for example, to use the European Regional Development Fund (ERDF) and ESF together in projects, 

but in practice - apart from some of the business support projects - it is really hard to do that where there is a 

capital and revenue combination. 

 

We recognise this and what we have tried to do to be a bit more positive is that under the regeneration team’s 

last round of good growth funding, we took some of our ESF allocation and we made that available.  We said 

we are looking for organisations to come to us with ideas which link some sort of capital or business, but 

mainly capital projects in a local area and look to use some ESF to do some training, skills and employment 

work around that.  I am going to be completely honest; we did not get that many.  We got about 11% of [the] 

bids [we received] proposed [for funding], but a lot of them wanted to use their own organisation and then we 

get back to the ESF rules which say that we as a co-signing organisation have to go out to competitive 

tendering. 

 

We cannot just give the money to this organisation to deliver.  That was one of the issues.  There were other 

reasons; some of them were asking for very small amounts of money, they may have misunderstood the way it 

Page 27

http://ec.europa.eu/regional_policy/en/funding/erdf/


 

works.  We have not thrown the baby out with the bathwater, we have learnt from that.  We are still going to 

be up for ESF in the next round.  What we have said to them is, “Do not put in an application until you have 

spoken to us about how this works”, because we recognise all the technical difficulties around that.  The other 

thing we have learnt from that is we identified there were some common themes around there where we 

couldn’t provide the ESF but we could see that there was a need. 

 

That is particularly the business growth projects that Helen [Stonelake] mentioned where people were asking 

for funding to help people to set up their own businesses, which is fine, you can do that under ESF, but as part 

of the proposal they put forward, we could not fund it.  Therefore, we have taken those proposals from 

individual projects and we have identified that there is a need to do something there and we have gone back 

to them and they have kindly given us some match funding and we are now going to be procuring two 

programmes.  One which will be focused on supporting disadvantaged people into entrepreneurship.  Actually, 

Helen, you know better than me. 
 

Helen Stonelake (Project Manager, Regeneration, GLA):  Focus on supporting specific organisations.  We 

hope particularly to focus on work spaces that have funding from capital money to help them access local 

talent, and do some work within the community so that they are offering opportunities to people in the local 

community who may not normally get that.  Therefore, we are looking at social integration outcomes as well.  

The lead(?) company are doing a bit of research into potentially running the accreditation scheme for working 

spaces and co-working spaces to look at social outcomes.  We are hoping to feed in through into this project 

as well. 

 

It is worth nothing that part of the reason we opted out the ESF alongside the capital funding was to get 

bidders thinking, “Actually how can I involve and employ those human skills” and its capital regeneration.  11% 

[of bids were proposed for funding], which I think is really key and we have had many conversations with 

organisations who potentially were not successful but are thinking about what they can do.  We are going out 

again in the next round and I expect to see four or five [organisations from the last round] come through this 

time [with bids] which are going to be successful.  It is a work in progress but it is positive to see people 

thinking a bit more not just about what is going to happen with the place, but who are they going to engage in 

that place and how are they going to engage them so it is meaningful. 

 

Julie Sexton (Senior Programme Manager, Regeneration, GLA):  This is on a slight tangent and this is 

probably a personal view but the other thing I would say is that post-Brexit we would really like the new [UK] 

Shared Prosperity Fund to provide those opportunities that are difficult to do in the ERDF and ESF that enable 

us to bring together the capital side of things and the revenue side of things.  There is a massive opportunity 

here that is difficult to -- 

 

Dr Onkar Sahota AM:  Thank you for pre-empting the question which is coming, which is what have you 

learnt from this? 

 

Finally, what levers can council use to make sure there are employment benefits to the local population from 

regeneration programmes? 

 

Julie Sexton (Senior Programme Manager, Regeneration, GLA):  It is probably better for Southwark to 

answer that.  It is not really my area.  I can probably draw the Assembly’s attention to the London Plan because 

that encourages local labour policies.  There is a section now on skills and it encourages local authorities to use 

their powers to promote local labour initiatives through the planning process.  I think local authorities are 

taking an increasing role in regeneration programmes as partners within that and that gives them more 

opportunity to influence whether there are skills programmes, but I am not in a position to answer. 

 

Page 28



 

Danny Edwards (Strategy and Partnerships Manager, Southwark Council):  I think a lot of the levers 

are around relationships and how we utilise those relationships to our advantage.  Certainly, the relationships 

with the developers themselves.  Our section 106 policies give us teeth in those relationships.  The approach 

we take in Southwark and one of the reasons we have such a successful section 106 policy - just to give you 

some statistics - since 2014 we have created 1400 jobs and over 300 apprenticeships through our section 106 

agreements with developers.  In part that has been because we have been very robust in our enforcement, but 

also very supportive in terms of application. 

 

Where there have been challenges for developers we have looked to see where we can work with those 

developers to overcome those challenges.  The Skills Centre is a really good example of that developer 

inputting these undeliverable targets on us, “We cannot get residents with the skills”.  “We will give you the 

residents with the skills; we will build a skill centre to help do that.”  That relationship with developers and 

getting that relationship right - particularly with big developers in big sites where they are going to be working 

in the borough for a long number of years - is critical. 

 

The other big one is the relationships with employers and we talked a bit about relationships with employers, 

but they are a critical part of this whole area around employment and skills.  If we are going to get it right, 

working with employers, helping them to understand our perspective, why this is important and what role they 

can play in promoting a strong local economy and really providing the infrastructure whereby those 

conversations can take place at a very productive level. 

 

In Southwark for example we have our major business forum, so we work with a whole range of very large 

employers from across the borough, including PwC, EY, News UK,  Guy’s and St Thomas’ [NHS foundation 

Trust]] so all sectors as well, we come together on a regular basis to discuss issues that are challenges for us 

both in terms of the local economy, things like Brexit, things like local employment, things like apprenticeships, 

things like good work and what does that mean, paying a living wage, all of those things, all of those kind of 

discussions we have with employers.  That helps us to understand some of the challenges and helps us to work 

with employers to overcome some of the barriers. 

 

Shaun Bailey AM (Chairman):  I have to close this out with our last few questions.  I am focusing this on 

Michael and Tony in the beginning.  How are all these different programmes and their effectiveness being 

monitored and evaluated?  Tony, you spoke earlier about how your organisation has done many evaluations, 

are you currently involved in evaluating anything that would be important to this discussion? 

 

Tony Wilson (Director of Policy and Research, Learning and Work Institute):  Yes, indeed, there are 

quite a few relevant programmes and initiatives.  Talking about some of the principles of how I do that, there is 

a point about monitoring, as you said, you talked about monitoring and evaluation, there is a definitely a point 

about monitoring and making sure that we are really clear about what outcomes we are trying to achieve for 

participants and how do we know when those have been achieved.  The outputs or success measures that map 

on to those outcomes, that sounds really obvious, but in practice you would probably be surprised or maybe 

not surprised at how often some of that stuff gets overlooked in the rush to get a programme off the ground 

and get it up and running. 

 

Certainly, the years that I have been involved with it the GLA has always been much focused on outcome-

based commissioning and focusing on being able to measure those employment and skills outcomes.  

Programme monitoring is really important, and how we can use that to address differences in performance 

within programmes is really key.  What you do tend to find is quite significant variation, particularly where you 

have, for example, London-wide programmes, significant variation in performance between boroughs, just as 

you do nationally between areas.  How you build in a performance management, contract management, quality 

management system that enables you to identify those, address those and share practice is really key. 

Page 29



 

 

On evaluation - and I would say this, would I not, as we are an organisation that does evaluation - there can be 

a tendency to, for example, commission evaluations quite late and to not really think about how you would 

evaluate the programme until you have started delivering it.  I would say thinking about those evaluation 

questions at the very start is really important.  If we have not set our objectives how will we know that we have 

achieved those and how do we evidence that to other people.  What we tend not to do a lot of in this country 

generally - at least not in this space - is sort of trials, if you like, where you would have one group get the 

intervention and the other group does not and you compare the outcomes. 

 

We do not treat it in a clinical or scientific way and I think that is understandable.  These services are based on 

delivering to people and they rely on partner engagement.  You do not want to have winners and losers and so 

on, but really thinking about how you will get the data and the insight to maybe measure the effectiveness of 

what you do is really important.  Partly why it is so important is because in this space and in employment 

interventions in particular, people always quote headline figures, 50%, 60% or however many percent it is, in 

work. 

 

What really matters is how many people get outcomes who would not have them without the intervention and 

that can be a much lower number.  If you are not being really careful about making sure that the programme is 

reaching the right people - people who would not otherwise benefit - and it is delivering things that will lead 

to positive improvements in outcomes, the additional impact can be quite low.  That is fiendishly difficult, 

fiendishly complex and we will hold our hands up for this, the ESF evaluations are a case in point.  We wanted 

to do an impact assessment and, ultimately, we could not as part of it, as it is really hard to do that if we are 

trying to also implement and improve programmes and we are trying to do that in a live environment rather 

than as a trial.  There is a lot we can learn from how we measure performance, how we manage quality and 

improvement and then how in evaluation, how we try to focus on the value of what we do.  I do think a core 

part of that must be about having good quality, like independent evaluation. 

 

Shaun Bailey AM (Chairman):  Michael, I will address this question to you: how would we know that the 

adult education strategies are good - to continue Tony’s points - have you pre-planned what you will be 

looking at?  Because one of the criticisms of many of the Mayor’s strategies has been the lack of key 

performance indicators and no way of tracking effectiveness.  In the piece of work you are working on now, 

which is very important to Londoners who are struggling, how have you planned to have that evaluated so you 

can adjust along the way? 

 

Michael Heanue (Principal Policy Officer (Skills), GLA):  There is a framework that is being prepared that 

will sit alongside the Strategy, which will be the metrics that will be captured to demonstrate just that.  

Alongside that there are, of course, Office for Standards in Education (Ofsted), Children's Services and Skills 

measures that can be considered in terms of quality.  That is around teaching and learning and leadership and 

management of an institution.  We are going to attach very clear key performance indicators (KPIs) to the 

Construction Academy output, which will be monitored.  The points you have raised about effective impactful 

evaluation factored in from day 1 is something we absolutely have to prioritise on this. 

 

Shaun Bailey AM (Chairman):  When you say you have to, have you already done that? 

 

Michael Heanue (Principal Policy Officer (Skills), GLA):  No, we are still designing the programme for the 

Mayor’s Construction Academy, but the framework is very advanced in its structure, in terms of how it will 

align to things like the ESF programme, where the complementarity is.  We have been very clear that we want 

to see outcomes, such as employment.  We want that to be measured, which is not happening systematically 

now. 

 

Page 30



 

Shaun Bailey AM (Chairman):  Do you have any kind of independent evaluation of the Strategy? 

 

Michael Heanue (Principal Policy Officer (Skills), GLA):  The Strategy itself?  It was widely consulted 

upon earlier this year and we have taken on lots of comments, including, I believe, from the Assembly. 

 

Helen Stonelake (Project Manager, Regeneration, GLA):  I do not think there is an evaluation of the 

overall strategy plan though.  It will be implemented from various different measures, AEB being one of them, 

and those individual measures, I suspect will be evaluated. 

 

Shaun Bailey AM (Chairman):  I suppose we do have the benefit of scrutiny committees to look into that at 

least once a year and I am sure they will. 

 

My very final question is to everybody, so chip in.  What more needs to be done to strengthen links between 

developers and local markets?  An additional question to you, Michael, why a Construction Academy, why not 

a different academy? 

 

Michael Heanue (Principal Policy Officer (Skills), GLA):  It is about bringing together supply and 

demand.  Supplying trained individuals in areas where there is demand for jobs to be filled.  Jules Pipe CBE as 

the Deputy Mayor for Planning, Regeneration and Skills has also recognised that you could technically do this 

focus across any sector of the economy, health and social care - I could go on.  It is absolutely correct that that 

could be applied that we are prioritising construction because we have very challenging housing targets and if 

a lack of construction skills is perceived to be hampering the delivery of those, then we have to act. 

 

Shaun Bailey AM (Chairman):  Does anybody want to make any final comments about the link between 

developers and the labour market, how we bridge that gap? 

 

Danny Edwards (Strategy and Partnerships Manager, Southwark Council):  Just a couple of things 

from me.  Maintaining that focus on the supply side, there has been a lot of conversations around addressing 

some of the challenges around links between regeneration, jobs in construction and local people.  Things like 

pooling of section 106 obligations across boroughs.  Whilst that might have some benefits if implemented 

correctly, what it is not going to do is sort out the supply issues, which I think are fundamental to the 

challenge.  How do we make sure that residents: (a) want to go into construction; and (b) have the skills to do 

so? 

 

I guess the second thing from me is that we talked a little bit about modular construction and the scale of 

impact that that might have in terms of jobs in the construction sector.  I think there’s a role for the GLA in 

terms of working with boroughs to help us to understand what that is going to look like and how we work with 

that. 

 

Tony Wilson (Director of Policy and Research, Learning and Work Institute):  A couple of things.  One, 

there is a real importance about trying to speak with one voice to developers, as employers.  If I were a 

developer I would probably struggle with this where you have JobCentre Plus talking to you about vacancies, 

you have council and borough level initiatives trying to engage you.  As an example, in Southwark we have new 

construction centres being commissioned, we also have the Construction Industry Training Board (CITB) 

playing a role in trying to help with mapping skills needs and so on.  The National Retraining Scheme, a new 

national initiative from the Department for Education which has two priorities at the moment: one of which is 

construction and the other is digital.  Everybody is in this space.  How do we speak with one voice to 

developers and try to co-ordinate? 

 

Page 31



 

That is quite hard, actually, because those relationships are really jealously guarded by the organisations that 

have them.  Jobcentre Plus puts a really high premium on its account management of employers.  Of course it 

does, as I am certain as the GLA would, as the National Retraining Scheme will, and, of course colleges and 

independent training providers.  They are delivers of an enormous amount of activity.  I did not mention this 

earlier but it occurs to me on the Skills Strategy you could be thinking about what kind of a single employer 

engagement strategy looks like.  How do we have one approach, we can try to be a single point of contact, but 

to make that work would rely on all of those organisations of jealousy guarded, those relationships being 

prepared to open and that is a really hard thing to do, that must be a challenge. 

 

The second, I think is about the role of schools. A real challenge in construction, in particular. That is not seen 

as a very attractive option, which is true of technical vocational skills generally, but construction, in particular, 

because it is such a cyclical industry.  You think about the downturn in particular, shedding jobs at the rate of 

knots and for teachers that is not going to be seen as - and we know it is not seen - as a secure and a viable 

and potentially successful career for many young people.  However, we all know that it is, and it is really 

important.  There is really good stuff in the Strategy about engaging with schools and getting employers into 

schools. 

 

That has put a really high premium on getting developers into schools, getting employers in the construction 

sector into schools as part of that strategy, which feels like a good opportunity, and third, one I have no 

answer for, is how to make sure that section 106 agreements last longer than just the agreement.  Some of the 

work we did certainly was done in the past and a specific example we were involved in, Westfield in Stratford, it 

was great for as long as the section 106 agreement was in place.  Everyone was very cooperative and open; not 

always, but usually quite cooperative and open about recruitment practices and how they engage local 

residents and support disadvantaged groups.  When the agreement ended - these are national organisations, 

they have their own recruitment channels, etc - it all just withered on the vine.  What can we do to make sure 

that does not drop off, that this is a permanent feature of how we engage with employers and how we support 

social inclusion rather than just a temporary one? 

 

Shaun Bailey AM (Chairman):  Thank you all.  I will call our discussion to a conclusion there.  I would like to 

thank our guests for very constructive conversation, I feel far better informed than when I arrived.  We will get 

some strong recommendations.  I will just remind you that when you leave, should you have a very bright idea, 

please do not hesitate to write to us.  We would like to hear said bright idea. 

 

 

Page 32



 

                                                                      

City Hall, The Queen’s Walk, London SE1 2AA 
Enquiries: 020 7983 4100 minicom: 020 7983 4458 www.london.gov.uk 

 

Subject: Summary List of Actions  
 

Report to: Regeneration Committee  
 

Report of:  Executive Director of Secretariat 
 

Date: 4 July 2018 

 
This report will be considered in public 
 
 
 
1. Summary  

 
1.1 This report sets out the actions arising from previous meetings of the Regeneration Committee. 

 
 
2. Recommendation  
 

2.1 That the Committee notes the completed and ongoing actions arising from previous 

meetings of the Committee. 

 

 

Action arising from the Committee meeting on 16 May 2018 

 

Item Topic Status For Action  
 

9 Regeneration Creating Employment Opportunities 

 

The Committee agreed to delegate authority to the 

Chairman in consultation with the Deputy Chair, to agree 

any output from the Committee’s meeting on the 

regeneration and employment opportunities in London 

and the arrangements for a site visit to support the 

Committee’s work on this subject. 
 

 

 

Partially 

completed.  The 

Committee 

undertook a site 

visit to the 

Southwark 

Construction 

Skills Centre on 

24 May 2018.  

More information 

about the site 

visit is set out in 

Agenda Item 7 

(Work 

Programme).  In 

progress for 

output. 

 

 

 

Scrutiny Manager 

 

Page 33

Agenda Item 4



        

10 Regeneration Committee Work Programme 

 

The Committee agreed to use its meeting slot on 

20 June 2018 for a site visit to the Royal Docks. 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

Completed. The 

site visit took 

place on 20 June 

2018.  More 

information about 

the site visit is set 

out in Agenda 

Item 7 (Work 

Programme). 

 

 

 The Committee agreed to delegate authority to the 

Chairman in consultation with the Deputy Chair, to agree 

the scope and terms of reference for the Committee’s 

scrutiny review of the Royal Docks and the arrangements 

for a site visit to the Royal Docks. 
 

Completed. This 

delegation was 

not used but 

more information 

about the areas 

for discussion is 

set out in Agenda 

Item 6 

(Regeneration in 

London’s Royal 

Docks) and a 

note of the site 

visit is included in 

Agenda Item 7 

(Work 

Programme). 

 

 

 

 

Page 34



        

Action arising from the Committee meeting on 6 February 2018 

 

Item Topic Status For Action  
 

6 Making London a Smart City, Digital Connectivity 

and Regeneration 

 

During the discussion the Chief Digital Officer, GLA, 

undertook to provide details of the governance 

arrangements for the London Office for Technology and 

Innovation once it had been established. 

 

 

The Committee delegated authority to the Chair, in 

consultation with the Deputy Chairman, to agree any 

output from the meeting. 

 

 

 

The Chair wrote 

to the Chief 

Digital Officer on  

20 February 

2018. 

 

Completed.  This 

delegation was 

not used. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Chief Digital Officer 

 

 

 

 

 

Scrutiny Manager 

 

 

 

 

3. Legal Implications 
 
3.1 The Committee has the power to do what is recommended in this report. 

 

 

4. Financial Implications 
 

4.1   There are no financial implications to the Greater London Authority arising from this report. 

 

 

 

 

 

List of appendices to this report:  None 
 
 

Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985  
List of Background Papers: None 

 

Contact Officer: Teresa Young, Senior Committee Officer 

Telephone: 020 7983 6559 

Email: teresa.young@london.gov.uk 

 

 

Page 35

mailto:teresa.young@london.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank

Page 36



 

                                                                      

City Hall, The Queen’s Walk, London SE1 2AA 
Enquiries: 020 7983 4100 minicom: 020 7983 4458 www.london.gov.uk 

 

Subject: Response to Regeneration Committee 
Report, Centres for Excellence?  Good Growth 
Through Town Centre Regeneration 

Report to: Regeneration Committee  
 

Report of:  Executive Director of Secretariat 
 

Date: 4 July 2018 

 
This report will be considered in public 

 
 
 

1. Summary  
 
1.1 This report sets out for noting the response from Jules Pipe CBE, Deputy Mayor for Planning, 

Regeneration and Skills, to the Committee’s report, Centres for Excellence?  Good Growth 

Through Town Centre Regeneration. 

 

 

2. Recommendation 

 

2.1 That the Committee notes the response from Jules Pipe CBE, Deputy Mayor for 

Planning, Regeneration and Skills, to the Committee’s report, Centres for Excellence?  

Good Growth Through Town Centre Regeneration, as attached at Appendix 1 to the 

report. 

 
 
3. Background  
 

Centres for Excellence?  Good Growth Through Town Centre Regeneration  

3.1 The Regeneration Committee agreed the following terms of reference for its investigation on Can 

Regenerating London’s Town Centres Deliver Good Growth? 

 To assess the successes and failures, in a number of case studies, of Mayoral regeneration 

initiatives as they impact on town centres across London; and 

 To identify what ‘good growth’ should look like, what it should aim to achieve and what are 

the factors that might assist or hold back such growth. 

 

3.2 The Committee’s report, Centres for Excellence?  Good Growth Through Town Centre 

Regeneration was published on 26 March 2017. The report can be accessed here.1   

                                                 
1 https://www.london.gov.uk/about-us/london-assembly/london-assembly-publications/centres-excellence-good-growth-
through-town-centre-regeneration 
  

Page 37

Agenda Item 5

https://www.london.gov.uk/about-us/london-assembly/london-assembly-publications/centres-excellence-good-growth-through-town-centre-regeneration
https://www.london.gov.uk/about-us/london-assembly/london-assembly-publications/centres-excellence-good-growth-through-town-centre-regeneration
https://www.london.gov.uk/about-us/london-assembly/london-assembly-publications/centres-excellence-good-growth-through-town-centre-regeneration


        

3.3 The report contained the following recommendations to the Mayor to ensure that his policies 

support town centre regeneration so that changing London town centres serve the needs of 

Londoners: 

 Create good jobs with stability, decent pay and prospects for progress; 

 Put in place the right social infrastructure to support communities – both old and new - to 

grow and strengthen; and 

 Involve and engage communities along the way to shape the direction development is taking. 

 

 
4. Issues for Consideration  
 

4.1 The response from Jules Pipe CBE, Deputy Mayor for Planning, Regeneration and Skills is 

attached at Appendix 1 for noting. 

 
 

5. Legal Implications 
 

5.1 The Committee has the power to do what is recommended in this report. 

 

 

6. Financial Implications 
 

6.1 There are no financial implications to the Greater London Authority arising from this report. 

 

 

 
List of appendices to this report:   
 

Appendix 1: Letter from Jules Pipe CBE, Deputy Mayor for Planning, Regeneration and Skills, dated 

22 May 2018. 
 
 

Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985  
List of Background Papers: None. 
 

Contact Officer: Teresa Young, Senior Committee Officers 

Telephone: 020 7983 6559 

E-mail: Teresa.young@london.gov.uk 

 

 

Page 38

mailto:Teresa.young@london.gov.uk


Appendix 1

Page 39



Page 40



 
 

Appendix: GLA support offer to high streets and town centres 
 

1  Advocacy – the case for high streets. 
 
The Mayor recognised and championed high streets and town centres in his manifesto, 
which included the following pledges: 
 

 Support communities which want to keep the character of their high streets intact: 

 Prioritise the improvement of high streets, squares and public spaces across the city 
– including outer London and inner London 

 
To help deliver on the manifesto pledges and to establish the strategic case for advocacy, 
intervention and investment, the Mayor published ‘High Streets for All’ last October. This 
research drew on LEAP funding to explore and establish the economic, social and 
environmental value of high streets from the perspective of Londoners and to highlight the 
significant challenges high streets and town centres currently face. The report sets out the 
potential role of the public, private and third sector in supporting the future success of high 
streets and town centres.  It makes the following 10 recommendations to help high streets 
and town centre stakeholders deliver inclusive, shared and locally-responsive growth: 
 

1. take a strategic place-based approach  
2. promote citizen-led regeneration  
3. be inclusive by engaging harder to reach citizens  
4. protect diversity and choice  
5. recognise the social value of high streets and town centres economies  
6. value the contribution of high streets and town centres businesses  
7. champion high streets and town centres as social, civic and cultural infrastructure  
8. value high streets and town centres as sources of civic pride and local identity  
9. champion high streets and town centres as public spaces  
10. uphold an evidence-based approach to maximise social value 

 
Specifically, the study sought ways to promote the inclusive and diverse nature of London’s 
high streets, so that Londoners can improve their economic and social well-being and 
participate in shaping the future of their city.  
 
The GLA’s place-based approach to regeneration – including of high streets and town 
centres - builds upon existing local character, history and culture of places. It recognises the 
importance of using cultural activity as a creative tool to engage with a broad range of 
people and to develop imaginative, inclusive regeneration plans for the areas they live and 
work in.  
 
Action 1A - A new Mayoral document later this year in response to ‘High Streets for All’ will 
set out the deliverable action plan for the Mayor and his agencies to support the future of 
London’s high streets.  
 
Action 1B – The independent evaluation of the Mayor’s high streets fund programme will  
provide new data to help develop the strategic case for investment in high streets and to 
help understand the potential social impact of such investment to inform the next rounds of 
regeneration investment. 
 
Action 1C - A high streets advocacy group, drawing on Mayor’s Design Advocates and 
other experts will act as a sounding board for the development of related GLA initiatives. In 
partnership with the Mayor, it will lobby government to make sure London has enough 
powers and resources to deal with issues like businesses occupation costs, the 
agglomeration of negative and antisocial high streets activity (i.e. fast food, betting offices 

Page 41



 
 

etc) and to ensure that boroughs have a stake in the financial wellbeing of high streets and 
can be supported to take a more proactive role in their management. 
 
 

2  Supportive policy framework  
 

The Mayor has put in place a range of supportive strategies and policies to promote 
economic uplift, social value, social integration, cultural engagement and a diverse range of 
uses across London’s network of town centres and high streets. 

The London Plan - The new draft London Plan provides the strategic framework for town 
centre policy development and implementation. It identifies the existing role and function of 
town centres and provides a broad indication of the future growth potential of each town 
centre over the Plan period. The role of town centres in regeneration and in strategic clusters 
of night-time economic activity is also identified.   

The new draft Plan recognises that town centres grow and change, particularly those with 
capacity for more housing, and it will be crucial that there is support for vibrant local 
economies and appropriate social infrastructure to support existing and new residents. It is 
equally crucial that local communities are engaged in planning and regeneration and have a 
meaningful say over how their town centres change.  

To address these issues, the new draft London Plan requires boroughs to undertake needs 
assessments of social and cultural infrastructure, and to address these needs in areas of 
major new development and regeneration through Opportunity Area Planning Frameworks 
and Area Action Plans, as well as identifying Creative Enterprise Zones and Cultural 
Quarters. The draft Plan also encourages town centre strategies, produced in partnership at 
the local level in a way that is inclusive and representative of the local community. Local 
Plans and other planning documents are also subject to consultation requirements to ensure 
local communities have a say in how their city develops.  

The draft Plan recognises the social value of high streets and town centres, highlighting how 
they provide access to a range of shops and services, employment opportunities, social 
contact, and information and support. The Plan requires boroughs to take high streets into 
consideration when setting town centres boundaries, and asks that, in developing town 
centres strategies, boroughs pay particular regard to the social benefits of high streets and 
town centres, especially the formal and informal networks that support local communities. 

Consultation responses to the new draft London Plan are currently being considered by the 
Planning team, including the response submitted by the London Assembly Regeneration 
Committee. Any ‘early suggested changes’ to the Plan in light of the consultation responses 
will be submitted for the independent planning Inspectors to consider. All consultation 
responses and early suggested changes will be sent to the Inspectors in advance of the 
Examination in Public, which will commence in the autumn. 
 
The Mayor’s Economic Development Strategy -  The future of London’s economy will be 
determined by the people who live and work in the city – whether they are established 
business owners, aspiring entrepreneurs, students or one of the millions of employees and 
residents in the capital. The Economic Development Strategy recognises the role of high 
streets and town centres in this and seeks to ensure their success by working with boroughs 
and other stakeholders to support a successful, competitive and diverse retail sector. New 
forms of retail will need to emerge, supplemented by the introduction of a wider range of 
food and leisure, affordable workspace, housing and civic functions.  The strategy supports 
the inclusive and diverse nature of London’s high streets and town centres, helping 
Londoners to improve their economic and social wellbeing and helping communities to 

Page 42



 
 

develop an understanding of the economic, social and physical condition of their town 
centres and high streets, encouraging stewardship by local residents and businesses to 
maximise local economic opportunities. 
 
The Mayor’s Strategy for Social Integration - The Mayor aims to improve social 
integration in London. This means enabling people to have more opportunities to connect 
with each other positively and meaningfully. It means supporting Londoners to play an active 
part in their communities and the decisions that affect them. It involves reducing barriers and 
inequalities, so that Londoners can relate to each other as equals.  A socially integrated city 
is a healthier, fairer and safer city.  As the city grows, social infrastructure such as schools 
and health centres must be designed to meet the needs of communities. Spaces where 
people can meet, and children can play, building relationships, should be created and 
preserved. Putting people at the heart of City Hall's approach to planning and regeneration 
will help growth to be beneficial to all Londoners. Projects that promote integration can help 
us all become more connected. town centres and high streets have significant role to play in 
the delivery of this mix of use and users. 

 
The Mayor’s Transport Strategy - The strategy sets out the Healthy Streets Approach, 
which has been introduced to prioritise health and human experience, favouring walking, 
cycling and public transport use over private car use. This can have transformative 
implications for many high streets. Prioritising more space-efficient modes of transport will 
create more space for people to shop and spend time. Reduced traffic dominance will help 
people to feel relaxed. Better connections on foot and by cycle will make the journey to the 
local high street more appealing than a car trip to an out of town shopping centre. And 
because people who get there on foot or by cycle spend more at the shops over the course 
of a month than people who drive, more people walking and cycling will be good for local 
businesses. 
 
London Health Inequalities Strategy - The Mayor recognises the impact that the built 
environment, including high streets and town centres, has on mental and physical health and 
wellbeing and health inequalities. The Mayor published the draft London Health Inequalities 
Strategy in August 2017 for consultation and is now producing the final strategy in response 
to the consultation. The strategy highlights the Mayor’s ‘health in all policies’ approach which 
means that the Mayor will systematically consider health and health inequalities in 
everything he does, including the development of other Mayoral strategies. 
 
The Mayor’s draft Culture Strategy - The Mayor recognises that culture binds us all 
together and makes the daytime thrive and the night-time come alive. He has made culture 
and the creative industries a core priority for his administration. In March 2018, the Mayor 
launched his draft Culture Strategy for consultation. It sets out four priority areas for culture 
in the capital: helping more Londoners experience and create culture in their local area; 
supporting, saving and sustaining cultural places and spaces; investing in a diverse creative 
workforce for the future; and maintaining London’s global position as a capital of culture.  It 
sets out a 24-hour vision for the city to ensure the night-time offer is extensive and diverse 
as well as safe and welcoming. Creative Enterprise Zones will be established across London 
to help artists and creative businesses put down roots. The Cultural Infrastructure Plan will 
map the city’s cultural infrastructure for the first time to help boroughs plan better for culture. 
Through Culture Seeds, the development of more grassroots and community projects will be 
supported. The flagship London Borough of Culture will place culture right at the heart of our 
neighbourhoods, celebrating communities and hidden cultural gems that all Londoners can 
take part in and enjoy. Town centres are key locations in the delivery of these ambitions. 
 
Supplementary Planning Guidance for Culture and the Night Time Economy was published 
in 2017. Since then, the guidance has been incorporated into the new draft London Plan.  

Page 43



 
 

Policy HC6 in the draft Plan specifically focuses on supporting the night-time economy. It 
asks all boroughs, including those in outer London, to develop a vision for the night-time 
economy, supporting growth and diversification, and building on the Mayor’s Vision for 
London as a 24-Hour City.  
 
The policy asks boroughs to support and promote the night time economy in local 
Development Plans, town centre strategies and planning decisions. It emphasises 
development in the Central Activities Zone, strategic areas of night-time activity, town 
centres, and where public transport such as the Night Tube and Night Buses are available. 
The policy also encourages the diversification of the night-time economy offer – both in its 
location and the types of activity that are available. 
 
Action 2A - The Planning team will consider the need for further Supplementary Planning 
Guidance (SPG) for town centres and high streets. 
 
Action 2B - The Mayor will work to protect spaces that promote social integration in London. 
Good growth means regenerating areas of London to the economic benefit of all, and in an 
environmentally sustainable way. It means providing better local services, high quality public 
spaces, good jobs and genuinely affordable homes for all. By focusing on high streets this 
will help to create places where social integration is natural, rather than an uphill struggle. 
 
 

3    Targeted and place-based investment  
 
The GLA’s Regeneration Team is working at a variety of scales from parades of shops to 
metropolitan and international centres, to develop packages of support and investment in 
collaboration with local authorities, Business Improvement Districts (BIDs), town teams and 
other local partnerships.  To ensure high streets and town centres investment is inclusive, 
the GLA promotes a strategic place-based approach and encouraging delivery partners to 
protect diversity and choice, recognise the social value of high streets economies, engage 
harder to reach citizens, and champion high streets as public spaces. 
 
To date a significant amount of the Mayor’s Good Growth Fund has been directed towards 
high streets and town centre improvements. Successful proposals include projects which 
support social, civic and cultural infrastructure, affordable workspaces and SMEs, as well as 
public realm improvements to create strong and healthy high streets, local neighbourhoods 
and communities. To date a third of the successful Good Growth Fund projects and a third of 
the successful development funding applications are related to the improvements of high 
streets and town centres. 
 
Markets are part of the fabric of London life and symbolise our openness to the world.  They 
are an essential part of Londoners’ everyday experience of the capital, offering a breadth of 
products and services through a diverse mix of traders to a variety of shoppers. Markets 
make our city a better, richer, more sociable place reflecting the emergence of new 
communities and ideas, providing for locals and tourists alike.  
 
The launch of the Mayor’s markets agenda in December 2017 marked the beginning of a 
new strategic approach that recognises the full value of these London assets. It also marked 
a commitment to working with the markets sector to address key challenges faced by 
markets in the capital. The approach incorporates the following measures:   
 

 Establishment of the London Markets Board - the first ever strategic forum to oversee 
markets in London. Chaired by the Deputy Mayor for Planning, Regeneration and Skills, 
the board brings together 14 individuals with expertise from across the markets sector 

Page 44



 
 

who will work to implement the recommendations from the recently published report 
‘Understanding London’s Markets’.   

 

 Publication of ‘Understanding London’s Markets’ – a major report commissioned together 
with LEAP which explores the social and economic value of markets to help set the 
context for the Board’s work. More than a year of extensive research, engagement and 
collaboration with the markets sector underpins the report, which set out to better 
understand the picture of London’s markets and the diverse value they generate in terms 
of people, prosperity and place. The report also communicates the many opportunities 
that are available to London’s markets and concludes with a set of recommendations.  

 

 Publication of the first ever interactive online map capturing London’s markets - the map 
allows people to search for local markets and filter by functions such as market type and 
opening times, enabling Londoners to access the range of markets across the capital.  

 
In partnership with the Arts Council and King’s College London, the Mayor also published a 
report presenting examples of how BIDs and cultural organisations work together to drive 
economic growth and help their communities thrive, creating strong and healthy high streets. 
It highlighted inspiring and creative examples of best practice for high streets and makes the 
case for even greater collaboration. While recognising the threats our high streets are facing, 
it shows the great opportunities for BIDs and cultural organisations to work together and 
improve the experience of the high street.  
 
Action 3A - Large-scale transformative investment will continue to be made available to a 
wide range of applicants through the Mayor’s Good Growth Fund. Future rounds of the fund 
will, among other things, target the diverse and accessible local economies on 600 high 
streets, across 239 town centres in London. Future investment will be targeted to increase 
capacity for the economy through place-specific delivery strategies and projects. By 
leveraging incentives created by new business rates retention arrangements it will enable 
stewardship of local economies to grow prosperity and empower local people. In so doing, 
the programme will implement draft London Plan policies on town centres, high streets, 
industrial and suburban intensification, and support good growth. 
 
Action 3B -  Small-scale funding and support will continue to be available for local 
community groups via the Mayor’s Crowdfund platform to develop strategies for high streets 
projects that are citizen-led.   
 
Action 3C - Ten London boroughs leading Creative Enterprise Zones consortia received 
Development Grants to research and develop Action Plans to apply for funding from the 
Mayor. This will be announced in Autumn 2018.  
 
Action 3D -  In June 2019, London will co-host the 10th International Public Markets 
Conference with Project for Public Spaces.  The conference will build on the findings of the 
‘Understanding London’s Markets’ research and the work of the London Markets Board to 
celebrate the diversity of London’s markets and the innovative ways they are responding to 
new challenges. It will explore how ‘Tomorrow’s Markets’ will work through three interlinked 
themes – inclusion, innovation and impact. The conference will provide an ideal opportunity 
to share all that London’s markets have to offer with an international delegation. As part of 
the conference a series of ‘legacy’ projects are being developed which include ideas for 
London’s first Youth Market. 
 
Action 3E - There will be ongoing evaluation of high street and town centre-related activity 
to ensure the development of a refined offer, expanded investment themes and activities to 
support London’s high streets and town centres. 
 

Page 45



 
 

//// 
 
 
A response to Centres for Excellence - key challenges 
 

1  The Mayor should seek a public commitment from developers and local authorities to 
deliver good jobs, as well as employment and skills strategies that recognise the local 
context and make links with the local Further Education sector. For example, the 
London Plan Good Growth Policy 1 should make an explicit reference to good jobs, 
as should the policies around Opportunity Areas and Local and Strategic 
Regeneration. 
 
While the planning system cannot specify pay, contracts and progression in the workplace, 
the new draft London Plan creates the potential for a broad range of jobs in London’s 
Opportunity Areas, town centres and industrial sites.  
 
The draft Plan recognises the importance of supporting successful office locations to 
complement the retail function of town centres, as well as planning for development that 
creates employment opportunities through Opportunity Area Planning Frameworks (OAPFs). 
The stronger protections given to industrial capacity in the draft London Plan mean that 
industrial and logistics businesses will have the potential to expand and thrive. These 
businesses typically offer a broad range of jobs at different skills levels, and include growing 
sectors such as engineering, logistics and tech. Many Opportunity Areas encompass 
industrial areas, and this new focus on industrial capacity will be taken forward in OAPFs.  
 
The Plan also requires development proposals to support employment and skills 
development and other training opportunities, including through Section 106 agreements, 
both in the construction and end-use phases. This approach enables boroughs to use their 
local expertise to secure the sorts of contributions and opportunities that meet the needs of 
local residents. 
 
Through the Skills for Londoners Capital Fund in association with LEAP, the Mayor is 
funding improvements to the facilities and equipment of London’s colleges and other training 
providers to help make skills provision more responsive to the needs of Londoners and 
London’s economy. He also distributes European funding to projects helping Londoners to 
access jobs and to progress in work. From 2019/20, he will gain control over the post 19 
Adult Education Budget, which is being devolved to City Hall. This will mean he is able to 
better shape skills provision in London to meet London’s needs. 
 
The Mayor will also look to promote increased investment in skills development and effective 
use of skills by employers as part of the forthcoming Mayor’s Good Work Standard. This will 
encourage and support employers to adopt inclusive employment and workforce 
development practices, promoting social mobility through accessing and progressing talent 
from all backgrounds. This will include open recruitment arrangements and family-friendly 
policies, such as increasing the availability of part-time and flexible working options. 

2  The Mayor needs to ensure that the London Plan supports the investment of social 
infrastructure in town centres. The Mayor should also be looking to use his 
regeneration funds to pilot innovative service delivery models to incorporate social 
and civic functions in the new town centres. 
 
The new draft London Plan requires boroughs to undertake needs assessments of social 
and cultural infrastructure, and to address these needs in areas of major new development 
and regeneration through Opportunity Area Planning Frameworks and Area Action Plans, as 
well as identifying Creative Enterprise Zones and Cultural Quarters. Creative Enterprise 
Zones seek to create the conditions for artists and creative businesses to put down roots 

Page 46



 
 

and benefit local communities, by looking across the four areas of space, policy, skills and 
support, and community. The draft Plan also encourages town centres strategies, produced 
in partnership at the local level in a way that is inclusive and representative of the local 
community. Local Plans and other planning documents are also subject to consultation 
requirements.  

To realise the potential of London’s high streets, the GLA Regeneration Team is working to 
develop packages of support and investment in collaboration with local authorities, BIDs, 
town teams and other local partnerships with a place-based approach to capture and 
respond to local needs and steer growth towards London’s existing high street communities.  
 
A significant amount of funding from the initial round of the Mayor’s Good Growth Fund has 
been directed towards high streets and town centre improvements. These projects are 
investing in the creation of new public assets, particularly those which develop new models 
of creating and capturing inherent value such as community shares or co-operative 
structures. The successful proposals are supporting social, civic and cultural infrastructure, 
affordable workspaces, SMEs and public realm improvements, and promoting local 
businesses, creativity and market opportunities.  
 
The Good Growth Fund advocates a participatory design process to co-design the outcome 
of a project or investment. It aims to bring the wider community together around common 
spaces or shared resources that help develop alternative economies or promote 
collaboration and social integration. 
 

3 The Mayor needs to develop a consensus view on what “meaningful engagement” 
should look like and this should be integral throughout the policies in the London 
Plan, specifically policies on Town Centres and Local and Strategic Regeneration. 
There should also be recognition of the importance of the provision of community 
spaces in these policies.  
 
The Mayor’s policies for social integration support boroughs to create more integrated 
communities to ensure that public services promote stronger relationships. London’s local 
authorities are key enablers of social integration, often providing funding, space and 
networks that help people to connect. They deliver most local public services that create 
opportunities for shared experiences and social mixing. 
 
The Mayor will launch a two-year Social Integration Design Lab that will enable borough 
service leads to work with social design experts, citizens and public-sector innovators to 
embed design principles and promote greater social integration. It will support relationships 
between Londoners from different backgrounds in public services, for example, libraries, 
parks, care and employment support. 
 
Local stewardship of high streets and town centres is vital to making sure they grow in a way 
that benefits all Londoners. In practice, this means supporting boroughs in their role as 
custodians of high streets, and supporting local partnerships and community-led governance 
to build capacity and overcome the barriers disadvantaged Londoners face to civic 
participation and active citizenship by being inclusive and engaging harder to reach citizens. 
 
The Mayor’s Good Growth Fund promotes the idea that everyone should have opportunities 
to contribute to making the place where they live by coming together to develop common 
spaces and shared resources. The first round of the fund supported innovative community-or 
citizen-led projects that challenge the way we think about public space, ownership and civic 
responsibility, leading to new models that work for local places.  
 

Page 47



 
 

4 The Mayor also needs to set out how he intends to empower local communities and 
help build their capacity for a meaningful engagement and input whilst upholding 
Londoners’ interest in negotiations with local authorities and developers. 
 
To ensure good growth for London’s high streets and town centres, City Hall is working with 
high streets stakeholders to deliver inclusive, shared and locally-responsive growth on 
London’s high streets and town centres. To ensure regeneration is inclusive, it is particularly 
important to advocate a strategic place-based approach, the protection of diversity and 
choice, the recognition of the social value of high street economies, and the engagement of 
harder to reach citizens, as well as championing high streets as public spaces. 
 
The Mayor’s policies and programmes seek to empower people by making sure that 
everyone can actively participate in their local community and civic life, and have a say in 
how their city is shaped. This involves bringing people together and fostering active 
citizenship and collaboration at a neighbourhood level. In addition to the approaches 
outlined above, to promote and support this approach, small-scale funding and support is 
available for local community groups via the Mayor’s Crowdfund platform to develop 
strategies that are citizen-led.  

Page 48



 

City Hall, The Queen’s Walk, London SE1 2AA 
Enquiries: 020 7983 4100 minicom: 020 7983 4458 www.london.gov.uk 

 

Subject: Regeneration in London’s Royal 
Docks  

Report to: Regeneration Committee  
 

Report of:  Executive Director of Secretariat 

 
Date: 4 July 2018 
 

This report will be considered in public 
 
 

 

1. Summary 
 
1.1. This report sets out the background for a meeting with invited guests to discuss the regeneration of 

the Royal Docks Enterprise Zone in the London Borough of Newham. 
 

 

2. Recommendations 
 

2.1 That the Committee agrees the areas for consideration set out in paragraph 4.1 of the 

report, and notes this report as background to the discussion with invited guests regarding 

the regeneration of the Royal Docks Enterprise Zone in the London Borough of Newham. 

 

2.2 That the Committee delegates authority to the Chairman, in consultation with the Deputy 

Chair, to agree any output from the Committee’s meeting on the regeneration of the Royal 

Docks Enterprise Zone in the London Borough of Newham and any additional activity to 

support the Committee’s scrutiny investigation of the regeneration of the Royal Docks. 

 

 

3. Background 
 

3.1 Following decades of underinvestment, the Royal Docks in the London Borough of Newham are 

undergoing a significant regeneration programme. To encourage development in the area, in 2010 the 

Mayor and Newham set out a vision for the area and made the Royal Docks an Opportunity Area in 

2011. The Government made the Royal Docks into an Enterprise Zone in 2012 to attract new 

businesses. It is overseen by the London Enterprise Action Partnership (LEAP), an advisory board to 

the Greater London Authority (GLA) made up of businesses and local government and chaired by the 

Mayor.  

 

3.2 The Enterprise Zone is estimated to generate £380 million in business rates income over the next 10 

to 15 years.
1 

In 2017 the LEAP and Newham set up a Delivery Team to use this income to encourage 

investment in the area and deliver a range of capital projects. 

                                                 
1 MD 2049, 22 February 2017 

Page 49

Agenda Item 6

https://www.london.gov.uk/decisions/md2049-royal-docks-enterprise-zone-delivery


    

 

 

3.3 The Royal Docks Unlocked: 2037 Economic Vision, published in 2016, sets out the vision for the 

Enterprise Zone, describing new capital projects that will create a Royal Docks with world-class 

infrastructure and distinctive, safe and permeable districts.2 To fulfil this vision, new developments are 

planned or under construction at Silvertown Quays, Royal Albert Dock and Gallions Reach, and a new 

Crossrail station is being built at Custom House. Within this vision there is a strong emphasis on a 

‘prosperous’ Royal Docks, promising to bring up to 40,000 new jobs by 2037, including employment 

and training opportunities for local people. 
 

 

4. Issues for Consideration 
 

4.1 Considering the new development taking place and the commitment to invest up to £380 million in 

capital projects and promotion, Members may wish to consider: 

 The progress towards developing and delivering a delivery plan for the Enterprise Zone; 

 The plan for connecting people with the Royal Docks and regenerating it into a place that 

people want to live, work and play in; and 

 The work being done with local communities to involve them in the Royal Docks and bring 

new affordable housing, jobs and training opportunities for local people.. 

 
Invited guests 

4.2 The following guests have been invited to the meeting: 

 Jane Sherwood, Interim Director of Regeneration & Planning, London Borough of 

Newham; 

 Robin Cooper, Head of Regeneration, London Borough of Newham; 

 David Lunts, Interim Head of Paid Service and Executive Director Housing and Land, 

GLA 

 Paul Creed, Head of Development and Placemaking, Royal Docks Delivery Team, GLA; 

and 

 Other guests are to be confirmed. 

4.3 The Committee is recommended to delegate authority to the Chairman, in consultation with the 

Deputy Chair, to agree any output from the meeting. 

 

4.4 The Committee may wish to undertake further activity to support this scrutiny investigation, for 

example holding a community roundtable, and it is therefore recommended that the Committee also 

delegate to the Chairman, in consultation with the Deputy Chair, to agree the arrangements for any 

additional activity. 

 

 

 

 

 

                                                 
2 GLA, Royal Docks: Unlocked: 2037 Economic Vision, 2016, page 6 

Page 50

https://www.london.gov.uk/moderngovmb/documents/s55807/072%20Appendix%202%20Economic%20Vision.pdf


    

 

 

5. Legal Implications 
 

5.1 The Committee has the power to do what is recommended in this report. 

 

 

6. Financial Implications 
 

6.1 There are no financial implications to the GLA arising from this report. 

 

 

 

List of appendices to this report: None 

 

 

Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985  
List of Background Papers: None 

 

Contact Officer:  Reece Harris, Assistant Scrutiny Manager 

Telephone:  020 7983 5802 

E-mail:  reece.harris@london.gov.uk  

 

Page 51

mailto:reece.harris@london.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank

Page 52



 

                                                                    

 
City Hall, The Queen’s Walk, London SE1 2AA 
Enquiries: 020 7983 4100 minicom: 020 7983 4458 www.london.gov.uk 

 

Subject: Regeneration Committee Work 
Programme  

 

Report to: Regeneration Committee  
 

Report of:  Executive Director of Secretariat 

 
Date: 4 July 2018 

This report will be considered in public 

 
 
 
1. Summary  

 
1.1 This report sets out progress on the Regeneration Committee’s work programme for the 

2018/19 Assembly year. 

 

 

2. Recommendations 
 

2.1 That the Committee notes the progress on its work programme as set out in the report. 

 

2.2 That the Committee notes the action taken by the Chairman, in consultation with the 

Deputy Chair, to agree a site visit to the Southwark Construction Skills Centre on 24 May 

2018 and notes the summary of that site visit set out in paragraph 4.4 of the report. 

 

2.3 That the Committee notes the summary of it site visit to the Royal Docks set out in 

paragraphs 4.5 to 4.7 of this report. 

 

2.4 That the Committee delegates authority to the Chairman, in consultation with the Deputy 

Chair, to agree the topic and use of the Committee’s meeting slot on 5 September 2018 

and to make any arrangements for the activity that the Committee undertakes. 

 

2.5 That the Committee notes the summary of its site visit to the London Legacy 

Development Corporation regeneration area held on 8 March 2018, attached at 

Appendix 1 to this report. 

 

2.6 That the Committee notes the Impact Review report for the Committee’s report, 

Relighting the torch: securing the Olympic legacy, attached at Appendix 2 to this report. 

 

 

Page 53

Agenda Item 7



        

3. Background 
 
3.1 The Annual Meeting of the Assembly on 10 May 2018 agreed the following meeting slots for the 

Regeneration Committee during the 2018/19 Assembly Year. The Committee may choose to use the 

meetings lots for formal meetings, site visits, informal meetings or other engagement activities.  

 

Date Topic 

 

4 July 2018 Regeneration in the Royal Docks  

 

5 September 2018 TBC 

 

10 October 2018 TBC 

 

6 November 2018 TBC 

 

5 December 2018 TBC 

 

31 January 2019 TBC 

 

14 February 2019 

 

TBC 

6 March 2019 

 

TBC 

 

4. Issues for Consideration  
  

Regeneration Creating Employment Opportunities 

4.1 The Committee used its meeting slot on 16 May 2018 for a scrutiny review of how regeneration can 

create employment opportunities in London.  This review built on the Committee’s previous work on 

the regeneration of town centres when the Committee heard about the capacity for large scale 

regeneration projects to create jobs.   

 

4.2 At its meeting on 16 May 2018, the Committee resolved: 

 

That authority be delegated to the Chairman, in consultation with the Deputy Chair, to agree any 

output from the Committee’s meeting on the regeneration and employment opportunities in London 

and the arrangements for a site visit to support the Committee’s work on this subject. 

 

4.3 The Chairman of the Committee undertook a site visit to the Southwark Construction Skills Centre 

(SCSC) on 24 May 2018.  The Chairman agreed the arrangements following consultation with the 

Deputy Chair.  The Committee is recommended to note that action.  

 

4.4 The site visit was attended by Shaun Bailey AM (Chairman) to better understand the role that 

training centres such as the SCSC are playing in developing construction skills and providing 

employment opportunities.  The SCSC is a collaboration between Southwark Council and Lendlease, 

the developer of Elephant Park, to train workforce for construction jobs across Southwark and 

Page 54



        

neighbouring boroughs.  During the visit, the Chairman was told about how the training programmes 

at the centre are tailored to develop core skills and meet the needs of prospective employers. This 

was said to benefit students, who are more likely to gain a job following each course, and employers, 

who gain access to a more loyal, experienced and cost-effective workforce.  

 

Royal Docks  

4.5 The Royal Docks is a major regeneration project in London.  The Committee will use this meeting 

slot to undertake a scrutiny review of The Royal Docks.  In advance of that meeting, the Committee 

used its meeting slot on 20 June 2018 to undertake a site visit to the Royal Docks. 

 

4.6 The Committee was taken on a tour of the Royal Docks, taking the Emirates Air Line cable car from 

North Greenwich to Royal Victoria Dock. The Committee were told about new communal areas and a 

temporary beach under development for the summer in Royal Victoria Dock. The Committee then 

walked to the Silver Building, a temporary hub for creative enterprises, to hear about the investment 

in meanwhile uses and the promotion of Royal Docks as a destination. 

 

4.7 Following this, the Committee walked to the Silvertown Quays development site and climbed to the 

top of the Millennium Mills former flour mill to gain an overview of the whole docks. After this, the 

Committee travelled to Royal Albert Dock for a presentation on the new business district under 

development there by Chinese company ABP London.  

 

 Site Visit to London Legacy Development Corporation (LLDC) Regeneration Area 

 

4.8 As reported to the Committee’s meeting on 16 May 2018, the Committee undertook a site visit to 

the LLDC regeneration area.  A summary note of the site visit is attached at Appendix 2 for 

Members to note. 

 
 Impact Review - Relighting the torch: securing the Olympic legacy 

 

4.9 On 8 November 2017, the Committee published its report, Impact Review - Relighting the torch: 

securing the Olympic legacy.  The Impact Review attached at Appendix 2 for Members to note, 

summarises the media coverage the report received, together with the responses to the Committee’s 

recommendations.   

 

 Work Programme for the Remainder of the Assembly Year 

 

4.10 Other topics for investigation will be added to the work programme during the year.  

 

4.11 As in previous years, the Committee may wish to use some of its meeting slots to undertake site 

visits, hold roundtables and receive briefings to support its scrutiny work. 

 

4.12 It is recommended that the Committee delegate authority to the Chairman, in consultation with the 

Deputy Chair, to agree the use of the Committee’s meeting slot on 5 September 2018 including the 

topic and any arrangements.  

   

 

 

 

Page 55



        

5. Legal Implications 

 

5.1 The Committee has the power to do what is recommended in this report. 

 

 
 
6. Financial Implications 

 

6.1 There are no financial implications to the Greater London Authority arising from this report. 

 

 

List of appendices to this report:  

 

Appendix 1 - Summary of the Committee’s site visit to the London Legacy Development Corporation 

regeneration area held on 8 March 2018. 

 

Appendix 2 - Impact Review - Relighting the torch: securing the Olympic legacy. 

  

 

Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985  
List of Background Papers: Member Delegated Authority Form 941. 

 

Contact Officer:  Riina Heinonen, Scrutiny Manager 

Telephone:  020 7983 4510 

E-mail:  scrutiny@london.gov.uk 

 

Page 56

mailto:scrutiny@london.gov.uk


 
Regeneration Committee 

 

1 
 

Site visit to Queen Elizabeth Olympic Park – 8 March 2018 
 

On Thursday 8 March 2018, Members of the London Assembly’s Regeneration Committee took part 

in a site visit to the Queen Elizabeth Olympic Park. The visit was attended by Committee Members 

Navin Shah AM, Chair, Shaun Bailey AM, Deputy Chairman and Unmesh Desai AM, the local 

constituency Member. The visit looked at the London Legacy Development Corporation’s (LLDC) 

delivery, looking at what is being developed in the Queen Elizabeth Olympic Park (the Park) and in 

the wider LLDC area. The Committee took part in a walking tour around the Park and its 

neighbourhoods particularly focusing on: 

• ‘Place-making’ in the new neighbourhoods in and around the Park  

• The Smart Park – the role of smart technologies and their testing in the Park 

 

The visit started at the Stratford International DLR station for a tour of the Olympic Park. The 

Assembly Members were led by Lyn Garner, LLDC Chief Executive, Paul Brickell, Executive Director, 

Regeneration and Community Partnerships and Jennifer Daothong, Head of Strategy and 

Sustainability. 

 

The East Village and Chobham Manor 
 

At East Village, the Assembly Members met with Neil Young, CEO, Get Living London and Nilima 

Khatun, Village Manager, Triathlon Homes to discuss the development. Members also had an 

opportunity to meet with local residents to discuss how the area is changing. Members were told 

that East Village is a Build to Rent development offering three-year tenancies managed by Get Living 

London. The scheme currently has 49 per cent affordable housing managed by Triathlon Homes, 

although new development will reduce the proportion to around one third. One third of people 

living in the East Village are originally from an East London postcode. 

 

Members heard that Get Living London and Triathlon reach out to the local community through 

community engagement officers and through organisations such as the Football Foundation. The 

Members also heard about some of the challenges faced by the community organisation, East 

Village Trust, to find space in the local area. 

 

Following a tour of the East Village, Members walked northwards to the Chobham Manor 

development. This is a new development of 859 homes, of which 75 per cent will be family housing. 

The scheme is currently completing its second phase. Members were told that the popularity of the 

development meant that prices have risen by 20 per cent since planning permission was granted. 

 

Unity Kitchen 
 

The Assembly Members paid a visit to the nearby Unity Kitchen café, located on the edge of the 

Olympic Park. They heard that the Unity Kitchen café is one of eight locations in London offering jobs 

and studying opportunities for people with learning disabilities as part of 12-month apprenticeship 

scheme. Working in partnership with Westminster Kingsway College, the apprenticeship scheme 

allows participants to focus on practical skills. The scheme has helped those with learning disabilities 

Appendix 1

Page 57



 
Regeneration Committee 

 

2 
 

find work, including at Unity Kitchen, where 50 per cent of staff at Unity Kitchen have a learning 

disability. Unity Kitchen also reaches out to the local community through its Healthy Eating 

Programme. 

 

East Wick and Sweetwater 
 

The Assembly Members walked through the Park to the East Wick and Sweetwater development 

sites next to the Copper Box Arena and Here East. The sites will include 1,550 new homes, to be 

completed in 2023. Members were told that there would be up to 66 per cent family housing at 

Sweetwater and that the height of the development would be low rise. Members also asked about 

the accessibility of housing for local people and were told that 30 per cent of the scheme would be 

affordable with prices in shared equity for one bedroom flat (25 per cent) around £100,000 to 

£200,000. 

 

Members were told about the development of a new neighbourhood in the area, focusing on 

creativity and community. This includes the development of a new neighbourhood offer, including a 

creche and primary school, as well as new open spaces. While the scheme is under development, 

meanwhile uses will occupy some of the development sites, including a new community garden 

‘Mobile Garden City’ next to the Copper Box. 

 

Stratford Waterfront 
 

Members then walked south through the Park to Stratford Waterfront, which will be home to a new 

Cultural and Education District. This will include a new theatre for Sadler’s Wells, the London College 

of Fashion and an outpost of the Victoria and Albert (V&A) Museum. The LLDC is also working with 

UCL East to develop the site to the south of the London Stadium. The V&A will open a new Collection 

Centre and UCL East have established their Institute of Robotics at Here East. Some community 

outreach is already taking place, even though the development will not be completed until at least 

2022, such as Sadler’s Wells’ work with East London Dance to encourage young people into dance.  

 

The work of the London Legacy Development Corporation 

 
After the tour, the Assembly Members had the opportunity to review the progress made by the LLDC 

in the regeneration of the area at the London Aquatics Centre. 

 

Discussion covered the following topics: 

• Convergence – the process of improving the life chances of people living in East London. The 

LLDC remains committed to convergence, although Paul Brickell told us that boroughs and 

the Mayor are less interested. However, the Government is still strongly supportive of 

convergence. 

• Smart Sustainable City. The Park is one of the first Smart Sustainable Cities, as part of a 

network of European cities. Members were told that new technologies, such as driverless 

buses, weather stations and bat detection systems were being introduced. One such scheme 

is Hello Lamppost, through which users can text objects to gather information on the Park. 

Page 58



 
Regeneration Committee 

 

3 
 

• Business and Innovation District. Members were told about how Here East is being used to 

attract new businesses, including BT Sport, Loughborough University London, a dance 

studio, UCL Institute of Robotics, Ford Motors and the Bartlett School of Planning and 

Architecture. Here East is also home to Plexl, a hub for start-up businesses. This is part of a 

wider Modern Industrial Strategy, designed to create jobs in advanced mobility, digital 

technology, culture and creative, and construction and built environment. 

• Opportunities for local people. The LLDC described how local people were benefitting from 

their work through new jobs and outreach. This includes the Design Engineer Construct 

(DEC) to develop local IT skills, the Shared Training and Employment Programme (STEP) and 

the Creative Operations Programme.  

• Relationship with boroughs. Members heard that despite the challenges posed to the LLDC 

by local boroughs, there is a strong working relationship in place. This includes working with 

Newham on sports participation through Active Newham, jointly employing officers with 

Hackney and Tower Hamlets to work with local organisations and working with construction 

training sites in Waltham Forest. 

 

The questions by the Assembly Members and the discussion then focused on: 

• The cost of running the London Stadium 

• The lack of a common political body for convergence 

• LLDC’s meetings with the Chief Digital Officer, including on digital resilience and better fibre 

infrastructure 

• Increasing the provision of affordable housing on the Park 

• Community engagement, including work through social media and with local schools 

 

 

Contact 
 

Riina Heinonen  

Scrutiny Manager 

 

regenerationcommittee@london.gov.uk 

020 7983 4000 

@LondonAssembly 

www.london.gov.uk/assembly  

Page 59

mailto:regenerationcommittee@london.gov.uk
https://twitter.com/LondonAssembly
http://www.london.gov.uk/assembly


This page is intentionally left blank

Page 60



Report Impact Review 
Relighting the torch: securing the Olympic legacy 
Released 8 November 2017 
 
Media coverage 

▪ The report received limited regional radio coverage, with 

two morning reports on LBC London News.  

 

▪ The report received a good amount of media coverage in trade publications, including The 

Architect’s Journal which focused on affordable housing and The Planner and Construction 

Global, which both focused on general progress on the convergence indicators. The Chair of 

the Regeneration Committee, Navin Shah AM, also wrote an article for Inside Housing called 

‘London’s Olympic Games have not benefited everyone’. 

 

▪ The report also featured in a consumer publication, Sportcal, which focused on the decline 

in sports participation in the Growth Boroughs. 

 

 
Official response and recommendation implementation 

 Recommendation Mayoral/ LLDC response 

1 If convergence is a priority, it 
should feature in this new Plan, 
and in the Mayor’s forthcoming 
strategies. 

 Letter from Jules Pipe, Deputy Mayor, 
Planning, Regeneration and Skills 
The London Plan also identifies 
Strategic Areas for Regeneration 
(Policy SD10) in those parts of London 
that are within the 20% most deprived 
parts of England (according to the 
Index of Multiple Deprivation), and 
includes significant areas within the 
Growth Boroughs. It puts a renewed 
emphasis on tackling spatial 
inequalities, and requires boroughs in 
their development plans, and when 
considering applications, to tackle the 
environmental, economic and social 
barriers that affect the lives of people 
in these areas. 

2 Commission research on the 
factors affecting convergence to 
date, specifically looking at the 
effects of population churn, 
welfare reforms, economic 
growth, and Mayoral and 
Government interventions. This 

 Letter from Jules Pipe, Deputy Mayor, 
Planning, Regeneration and Skills 
No commitment 

Appendix 2

Page 61

https://app.criticalmention.com/app/#/report/9128fa59-a9b4-4869-abf4-d6a8114e7eec/section/74680
https://www.architectsjournal.co.uk/news/olympic-legacy-housebuilding-shortfall-revealed/10025116.article
https://www.architectsjournal.co.uk/news/olympic-legacy-housebuilding-shortfall-revealed/10025116.article
https://www.theplanner.co.uk/news/quality-of-life-gap-remains-in-east-london-five-years-on-from-olympics
https://www.constructionglobal.com/sustainability/has-olympic-dream-lost-its-fire
https://www.constructionglobal.com/sustainability/has-olympic-dream-lost-its-fire
https://www.insidehousing.co.uk/comment/comment/londons-olympic-games-have-not-benefited-everyone-53157
https://www.sportcal.com/News/Search/113877


  Regeneration Committee 

 

research would help identify the 
‘gaps’ in convergence that need 
addressing and serve as a useful 
platform from which to assess 
future support and investment 
in convergence 

3 Keep the momentum going by 
ensuring that a commitment to 
convergence features in his new 
London Plan, his Economic 
Development Strategy and his 
final Health Inequalities Strategy 

 Letter from Jules Pipe, Deputy Mayor, 
Planning, Regeneration and Skills 
The [Health Inequalities strategy] 
report highlights some inequalities that 
are particularly acute in relation to the 
Growth Boroughs. For example, the 
rate of early deaths from preventable 
causes is twice as high in Tower 
Hamlets as it is in the nearby City of 
London. The overall ambition of the 
strategy is to reduce this unfair 
variation while also improving the 
overall health of all Londoners. 
 
The development of the draft 
strategies has been informed by 
various pieces of research and 
Integrated Impact Assessments, as well 
as by GLA Economics’ Economic 
Evidence Base and the sophisticated 
population projections produced by 
the Demographics Team in the GLA’s 
Intelligence Unit. This work looks at a 
wide range of factors that affect 
inequalities across the city (including 
convergence), such as educational 
attainment, skills levels, employment, 
income, poverty and deprivation. The 
research uses borough-level data 
where possible, identifying sub-
regional and sectoral trends.  

4 Consider measuring how far 
future Good Growth Fund 
projects in east London 
contribute to convergence 
indicators 

 Letter from Jules Pipe, Deputy Mayor, 
Planning, Regeneration and Skills 
The Mayor and LEAP are committed to 
understanding the impact of 
investment through such funds.  GGF 
[Good Growth Fund] project partners 
will therefore be asked to collect 
evidence on the environmental, social 
and economic impact of their 
interventions including carrying out 

Page 62



  Regeneration Committee 

 

equalities monitoring. A handbook has 
been produced to provide guidance to 
project partners on collecting 
evidence, demonstrating impact and 
undertaking evaluation.  

5 The LLDC should work in closer 
partnership with the Mayor and 
the Growth Boroughs on a new 
Convergence Strategy 

 No response 

6 The LLDC should revise its plan 
to emphasise the need for a 
collaborative convergence 
vision extending well beyond 
the boundaries of the Olympic 
Park 

 No response 

7 The LLDC and the Growth 
Boroughs should explore ways 
in which closer partnership 
working could attract greater 
resources and support for 
convergence 

 No response 
 
Site visit to LLDC 8 March 2018 
At the site visit on 8 March 2018, the 
Regeneration Committee were told 
that the LLDC remains committed to 
convergence, although boroughs and 
the Mayor are less interested. 
However, the Government is still 
strongly supportive of convergence. 

 

 
 

Page 63



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 64


	Agenda
	2 Declarations of Interests
	3 Minutes
	Minutes - Appendix 1 - Transcript

	4 Summary List of Actions
	5 Response to Regeneration Committee Report, Centres for Excellence?  Good Growth Through Town Centre Regeneration
	Appendix 1 - letter from Deputy Mayor
	Appendix to letter from Deputy Mayor

	6 Regeneration in London's Royal Docks
	7 Regeneration Committee Work Programme
	Appendix 1 - Site visit to Queen Elizabeth Olympic Park
	Appendix 2 - Convergence impact review




